
ABABABAB    
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 9 FEBRUARY 2009 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda.  Members must also 
declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any items under 
consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 3 November 2008 
 

1 - 6 

4. External Audit Reports 
 
To receive a series of commissioned final reviews undertaken by the External 
Auditors. 

 

7 - 60 

5. International Financial Reporting Standards 
 

To receive an overview on the International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
significant changes required to the Councils accounts in order to comply and the 
potential resource implications. 

 

61 - 66 

6. Risk Management Update 
 

To receive an overview on the strategic risk profile for the Peterborough. 

 

67 - 70 

7. Annual Governance Statement Update 
 

To receive an update on the actions undertaken to ensure significant governance 
issues identified in the Annual Governance Statement are being addressed. 

 

71 - 78 

8. Internal Audit Progress Report - To 31 December 2008 
 

To receive an update report on the work undertaken by Internal Audit up to 31 
December 2008 and proposals for future delivery of the audit plan. 

 

79 - 112 

9. Feedback and Update Report 
 

To receive standard feedback report on issues and action requests made at past 
meetings of the Committee. 
 

113 - 116 

Public Document Pack



10. Audit Committee Work Programme 2008/2009 Including any Training 
Needs 

 
To agree the current work programme and propose any future training needs. 
 

117 - 120 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: P Hiller (Chairman), N North (Vice-Chairman), L Gilbert, D Harrington, Z Hussain, 
P Kreling and D Seaton 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: S Dalton, N Khan and C W Swift 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 01733 

452268 or by email – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



 

ABABABAB    
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 3 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 
Present: Councillors Hiller (Chairman), Gilbert, Kreling, Seaton, Harrington, 

Hussain and S Dalton. 
   
Officers in Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 
attendance: John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance and Performance Improvement
  Israr Ahmed, Contracts Legal Executive 
  Gemma George, Governance Support Officer 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 
 Apologies were received from Councillor North. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 September 2008 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held 23 September 2008 were approved as an 

accurate and true record. 
 
4. Internal Audit Progress Report: To 30 September 2008 
 

The Committee received a report which highlighted the Internal Audit 
performance and progress in relation to the 2008/2009 Audit Plan. The report 
outlined the work undertaken by Internal Audit up to 30 September 2008, 
progress against the Audit Plan and any other issues of interest. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor highlighted the key points of the report to the 
Committee, including: 
 

• Progress against the Audit Plan; 

• Responses to Audit Reports; 

• Status of recommendations; and 

• Other performance matters 
 

Members were asked to consider and comment on the report and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

• Members sought clarification as to why certain audit assignments had 
taken longer to complete than the time originally allotted for them. 
Members were informed that timescales for audit assignments could 
fluctuate, either because of a change in scope or extent of an audit, or 
because of requests for special investigations which would take 

1



precedence. Audits would then continue after any special investigations 
had been completed.          

• Members queried whether the number of audits that showed revised 
timescales was normal and whether these figures reflected changes in 
scope to the audits or an increase in special investigations. Members 
were advised that special investigations certainly had an impact on the 
increase in timescales. However, the overall increase could be 
attributed to the higher level of coverage required for each audit. 

• Members further queried whether any of the increased timescales could 
be attributed to records or lack of support received from the area being 
audited. Members were further advised that better processes were 
always welcomed as this was occasionally a factor. 

• Members questioned how value for money was ensured. Members were 
informed that focus was pinpointed on the right areas highlighted by 
external auditors.  

• A query was raised regarding the nature of any changes to be 
implemented to the plan in order to maintain and increase progress. 
Members were advised that new processes would be taken on board, 
and full use would be made of risk assessments. A full review of the 
audit plan would not need to be undertaken until the following year, 
when it would be re-assessed and amended if it was required.  

• Members questioned whether reminders sent out in order to progress 
the finalisation of reports, were ever met with resistance. Members were 
advised that occasionally it was necessary to chase information. Also, 
as services which were audited generally included more than one area, 
a large amount of information collation was sometimes required which 
therefore led to a lag in response time. 

• Members commented on the overall improvement in sickness levels and 
questioned whether, going forward, the learning academy approach 
would be implemented for future training. Members were advised that 
the development of third tier officers, the provision of training and 
extensive surveys across the council would all be implemented. Going 
forward, the development of future inspirational managers would be a 
key project. 

• Members sought clarification on the reasons behind no rating for private 
fostering appearing in the audit. Members were informed that the 
scheduled time of the audit did not prove to be appropriate as there 
were changes being undertaken within the section. Members were 
further informed that a there would be a rescheduled audit for the 
following year.  

• Members queried the systems in place for replacing internal audit staff 
due to illness. Members were advised that while every audit post was 
filled, experienced agency staff were utilised when a gap was identified. 
Furthermore, a trainee auditor was also in place.  

 
 ACTION AGREED: 
 
 The Committee received the report and noted; 
 
 (1)  That the Chief Internal Auditor was of the opinion that based on works 

conducted during the 6 months to 30 September 2008, internal control systems 
and governance arrangements remained generally sound; and 

 (2)   The progress made against the plan and the overall performance of the 
section. 

2



5. Use of Resources 2008/2009 Update 
 

The Head of Strategic Finance and Performance Improvement submitted a 
report which updated the Committee on the preparation of the action plan for 
dealing with changes to the Use of Resources Assessment for 2008/2009.  
 
The Audit Commission were responsible for designing and implementing the 
Use of Resources Assessment model. For 2008/2009 the assessment had 
been changed from the one in use, and formed part of the Comprehensive Area 
Agreement (CAA).  
 
The new framework was based upon arriving at an overall assessment for 
Value for Money in the use of resources. This was supported by three themes: 
 

• Managing finances; 

• Governing the business; and 

• Managing resources 
 

Each of the themes would be given a score based upon key lines of enquiry 
(KLOE). The key lines of enquiry were generic across all organisations 
subjected to the CAA framework in order that there was a consistency in the 
measurement of performance. 
 
Members were asked to consider and comment on the report and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

• Members questioned who was coordinating and working on the project. 
Members were advised that a working group had been put in place 
which reported directly to the Head of Strategic Finance and 
Performance Improvement. 

• Members sought clarification on the meaning of the term “the golden 
thread”. Members were informed that the term meant the linking of 
actions and outcomes across the Council, therefore providing a clear 
line of sight. 

 
 ACTION AGREED:   
 

The Committee agreed the approach to preparation of the 2008/09 UoR 
Assessment. 

 
6. Risk Management Update 
 
 The Director of Strategic Resources submitted a routine planned report 

detailing risk management and further highlighted to the Committee the revised 
Risk Management Strategy document.  

 
 The Board was informed that the initial Risk Management Strategy had 

received Cabinet approval in November 2004 which confirmed formally the 
Council’s continued commitment to the management of risk. Since that time, 
the Strategy had been updated regularly and the Audit Committee were the 
responsible group for Risk Management.  

 
 There had been a number of initiatives in order to embed risk management 

within the Council. These had included training sessions for members and 

3



officers and the purchase of new software to facilitate the process. Also 
performance clinics, which had focussed on areas of poor performance and 
high risk, had been run with the Corporate Management Team. 

 
 The Risk Management Strategy document had been updated to reflect changes 

in best practise and to ensure compliance with CPA expectations. The changes 
which had been implemented were: 

 

• Changing from a 6x4 to a 5x5 risk matrix 

• That departmental risk registers were more closely linked to business 
plans 

• That escalation criteria for departmental risks, considered by CMT, were 
more formalised 

• That the prioritisation criteria were clarified 

• That the strategy clarified action planning requirements for risk registers 
 
Members were informed that work was being closely undertaken with Zurich to 
ensure consistency and to achieve the “golden thread”. 
 
Members were further informed that the Strategic Risk Register was being 
worked on, and that this would be included as a future agenda item. 
 
Members were asked to consider and comment on the report and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

• Concern was expressed regarding the investments in the Icelandic 
Banks and whether risk assessment had been implemented. Members 
were assured that codes of practice had been adhered to with regards 
to treasury management. All monies had been spread widely, with no 
speculative investments.   

 
 ACTION AGREED: 
 
 The Committee approved the revised Risk Management Strategy. 
 
7. Feedback and Update Report 
 
 The Chief Internal Auditor submitted the latest Update and Feedback Report for 

consideration. 
 
 Members were advised that papers highlighting over depreciation of assets and 

examples of trade debts over a year old had been added to the schedule.  
 
 ACTION AGREED: 
 
 The Committee noted the Update and Feedback Report. 
 
8. Audit Committee Work Programme 2008/2009 Including any Training 

Needs 
  
 The Chief Internal Auditor submitted the latest version of the Work Programme 

2008/2009 for consideration and approval.  
 

4



 Following a query regarding training, members were advised that a session 
would be arranged to take place before the next meeting of the Audit 
Committee.  

 
 The training session would incorporate debt management and write offs. 
 
 Members queried the possibility of the revision of audits to incorporate the 

impact of the credit crunch. Members were advised that audit plans were being 
reviewed and a number of reports on the credit crunch had consequently been 
produced, for example the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Members were 
further advised that information regarding the credit crunch would be fed back 
to them at the end of the year. 

 
 ACTION AGREED: 
 
 The Committee noted and approved the latest version of the Work Programme. 
 
 
 
 The meeting closed at 7.40 p.m. 

 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Committee Member responsible: 

 

Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources 

John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance 

Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

( 452 398 

( 384 564 

( 384 557 

 

 

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : PricewaterhouseCoopers Deadline date : N/A 

1. The Committee is asked to consider, and endorse the final reports produced by External 
Audit in relation to: 

 

• Final Audit of Statement of Accounts 2007 / 2008: Report to Management 

• Use of Resources 

• Review of Data Quality Arrangements 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

 This report is submitted to the Audit Committee in line with its Work Programme for 2008 / 
2009. The report is submitted by the Council's s151 officer, being part of his statutory 
duties. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce various commissioned reports from 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), the Council's external auditors, in accordance with the 
Committees' Terms of Reference 2.8.1.5 ("To consider the external auditors letter, relevant 
reports, and the report to those charged with governance"). It is to inform Audit Committee 
of agreed recommendations following the completion of the reviews.  

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 
4. EXTERNAL REPORTS 
 
4.1 During 2008 / 2009, PwC have undertaken various reviews on behalf of the authority. The 

following report has been received and agreed with senior management.  
 

Appendix A Report to Management Issued: January 2009 

Appendix B Use of Resources Issued: January 2009 

Appendix C Data Quality Arrangements Issued: December 2008 

 

7



4.2 Report to Management (Appendix A) 
 
4.2.1 The report includes management comments on the auditors observations. The document 

has been discussed and agreed jointly by the Director of Strategic Resources and the Head 
of Strategic Finance. All recommendations have been agreed and appropriate timescales 
and responsible officers have been identified to deliver the necessary changes. 

 
4.2.2 The report highlights that the Council has maintained its high standards of Financial 

Reporting set during the 2006 / 2007 audit. Again, working paper quality and prompt query 
responses enabled the work to be completed to timescale and with an unqualified opinion. 

 
4.2.3 The report highlighted 10 issues to be addressed, 6 of which are medium priority and 4 are 

low priority. 
 

Summary of  Recommendations: Report To Management 
 

 High Medium Low Total 

2005 / 2006 5 6 2 13 

2006 / 2007 - 2 4 6 

2007 / 2008 - 6 4 10 

 
 The medium term priorities identified are: 
 

• Further assurance could be obtained over the value of the VAT shelter to be paid 
each year to provide greater assurance to the Council; 

• A review should be undertaken of property lease arrangements in place to determine 
whether these are the most suitable terms for the Council, and if not, whether it is 
possible that the Council can exit the lease; 

• The Council should review of the fixed asset register once depreciation charges have 
been calculated to ensure that assets with negative values are not included; 

• Introduce a mechanism that makes it a requirement of the contract signing process 
for the Legal Department to be automatically sent a copy of the contract; 

• The Council should make use of the repeat invoice facility whenever possible and 
ensure that all debts are written-off in line with standing orders; and  

• Internal Audit recommendations should be implemented on a timely basis. 
 
4.2.4 Two issues relating to the Report to Management in 2006 / 2007 have been partially 

resolved. Steps have been incorporated into the closure process to ensure these are also 
actioned. Management comments for the 2007 / 2008 issues are detailed in the report.  

 
4.3 Use of Resources (Appendix B) 
 
4.3.1 The Use of Resources (UoR) judgement forms part of the Comprehensive Performance 

Assessment (CPA) of the Council. It is carried out annually by PwC and covers the 
following areas:  

 

• Financial Reporting; 

• Financial Management; 

• Financial Standing; 

• Internal Control; and 

• Value for Money.   
 

8



4.3.2 The main basis of the judgement is dependent upon the Council's self-assessment against 
the Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE). This self assessment is then audited by PwC and 
checked for consistency against regional and national benchmarks. The judgement for 
each area is scored between 1 and 4.  

 
4 Well above minimum requirements - performing strongly 

 

3 Consistently above minimum requirements - performing well 
 

2 At only minimum requirements - adequate performance  
 

1 Below minimum requirements - inadequate performance 
 

 
4.3.3 The UoR assessment gets harder each year with an expectation of continuous 

improvement, so a score of 3 in one year may only be sufficient for a 2 in the following year. 
Furthermore, additional KLOE's can be added each year, with these changes making day 
to day operations more flexible and responsive to future requirements. In line with the move 
from CPA to Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), changes are incorporated that will 
replace the current UoR in 2009. These are split into 4 revised themes. 

 
4.3.4 Appendix B is the PwC report for the UoR for 2008 which covers the period to March 2008. 

The overall assessment is a 3 - performing well. While this is the same score as was 
achieved in 2007, the Council has improved on a number of themed scores compared with 
the previous years. 

 
 2008 2007 2006 2005 

FINANCIAL REPORTING 

• How good are the councils financial 
accounting and reporting arrangements? 

 

4 4 2 1 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

• How well does the council plan and 
manage its finances? 

 

3 3 2 1 

FINANCIAL STANDING 

• How well does the council safeguard its 
financial standing? 

 

3 3 2 2 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

• How well does the council's internal 
control environment enable it to manage 
significant business risks? 

 

3 2 2 2 

VALUE FOR MONEY 2 
 

2 2 2 

OVERALL JUDGEMENT 3 3 2 2 

 
4.3.5 Particular achievements in the year are: 
 

• Working papers provided by Strategic Finance have been reported to the Audit 
Commission as an example of notable practice; 

• New financial instruments requirement introduced in the Statement of Recommended 
Practice were met; 

• Continued improvement in financial and asset management arrangements in 2008; 

• Sound financial standing; 

• All internal control KLOE scores have improved to a level 3, highlighted by 
improvements in managing risk, sound assurance on internal control systems; and 
actions in fraud and probity; and 

• Business transformation delivering increased savings and efficiencies. 
 

9



4.4 Review of Data Quality Arrangements (Appendix C) 
 
4.4.1 PwC annually undertake a review of the council’s data quality arrangements. The review 

focuses on all aspects of data quality at a corporate level and is also linked to the 
requirement for PwC to conclude on the council’s use of resources. 

 
4.4.2 The review is a three stage approach. 
 

• Stage 1: Management arrangements. 

• Stage 2: Completeness check. 

• Stage 3: Data quality spot checks.   
 
4.3.3 In summary, the results show an improvement overall across the Council which is 

demonstrated by the overall score reported as a "3" (Consistently above minimum 
standards - performing well). This is an increase from the previous years score of 2. 
Recommendations are currently being reviewed and implemented by the relevant services. 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

 The various appendices have been discussed, and actions agreed by senior management 
at various times before being finalised. 

 

6 ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

Acknowledgement of the works undertaken by External Audit and to endorse the Action 
Plans they have produced in consultation with senior management to improve future 
processes. 

 

7 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Management Report provides details for improvements in the final accounts processes 
and an effective action plan to ensure future improvement. Audit Committee to note the 
contents of the report and to comment on issues identified within the various commissioned 
works. 
 
In order for the Council to move towards its goal of excellence it is essential that the 
progress made to date in the area of UoR is built upon. This progress is against a measure 
that is getting more difficult. 

 

8 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

None. 
 

9 IMPLICATIONS 
 

Implications have been identified separately in each agreed Action Plan. 
 

10 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

  

  
 

10



h

Peterborough City Council
Statement of Accounts 2007/08

Report to Management

Government and Public Sector
January 2009

 !"#

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A

11



2

John Harrison

Peterborough City Council

Town Hall

Bridge Street

Peterborough

PE1 1FB

January 2009

Dear John

Peterborough City Council: Report to Management 2007/08

Please find enclose our Report to Management, summarising those issues arising from the

Statement of Accounts audit in 2007/08.

Yours faithfully

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Enclosures

Copies to:

Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive

John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance

Mandy Bretherton, Corporate Accounting Manager

Steve Crabtree, Head of Internal Audit

 !"#
Abacus House

Castle Park

Cambridge

CB3 0AN

Telephone 01223 460055

Facsimile 01223 552300

www.pwc.com/uk

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the
Financial Services Authority for designated investment business.

APPENDIX A

12



3

Contents

Executive Summary................................................................................................................... 4

Appendix A: Matters arising from the 2007/08 Statement of Accounts audit ............................ 6

Appendix B: Follow up of prior year issues ............................................................................. 13

Code of Audit Practice and Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of

Audited Bodies

In April 2008 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of

responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive

of each audited body. The purpose of the statement is to assist auditors and audited

bodies by explaining where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end, and what is to

be expected of the audited body in certain areas. Our reports and management letters

are prepared in the context of this Statement. Reports and letters prepared by appointed

auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the

audited body, and no responsibility is taken by auditors to any Member or officer in their

individual capacity, or to any third party.

APPENDIX A

13



4

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report

This report has been prepared for the officers of Peterborough City Council in relation to the

final audit of the Statement of Accounts for 2007/08.

This is the final report in a series issued as part of the audit process for 2007/08. This report

sets out our findings from both the interim and final stages of the audit. The purpose of this

report is as follows:

 To provide officers with the findings from our interim audit and final audits, that took

place in February and July to September 2008. A number of these issues were

raised in our 2007/08 Report to those charged with governance. This report expands

further on those issues and gives management the opportunity to formally respond to

the points raised in that report. Our findings are shown in Appendix 1 of this report.

 Secondly, this report follows-up our issues that were identified as part of the 2006/07

audit, as described in our report Final Audit of Statement of Accounts 2006/07. Our

findings are shown in Appendix 2 of this report.

During the year, we have issued a number of other reports. These comprised the Review of

Internal Audit effectiveness (August 2007), Business Process Mapping (June 2008) and Debt

Management: follow-up report (August 2008). We have not repeated any of the

recommendations or findings from these other reviews in this report.

Summary of key findings

We are pleased to note that the Council maintained the high standards of Financial Reporting

set during the 2006/07 audit. The quality of working papers and officers’ prompt responses to

queries have contributed to ensuring an efficient audit process, enabling us to issue an

unqualified audit opinion on the Statement of Accounts on 24 September 2008.

We are pleased to note that no high priority issues have arisen from our audit. However, we

have identified some medium priority issues that have resulted in the following

recommendations:

 Further assurance could be obtained over the value of the VAT shelter to be paid each year to

provide greater assurance to the Council;

 A review should be undertaken of property lease arrangements in place to determine whether

these are the most suitable terms for the Council, and if not, whether it is possible that the

Council can exit the lease;

 The Council should undertake a review of the fixed asset register once depreciation charges

have been calculated to ensure that assets with negative values are not included;

 A mechanism should be introduced that makes it a requirement of the contract signing process

for the Legal Department to be automatically sent a copy of the contract;

 The Council should make use of the repeat invoice facility whenever possible and ensure that

all debts are written-off in line with the Standing Orders; and

 Internal Audit recommendations should be implemented on a timely basis

These recommendations are expanded further in Appendix A of this report.

APPENDIX A

14



5

Explanation of priorities

The importance of issues identified during our work has been classified as follows:

High – major issue for the attention of senior management

Immediate action is required to address a serious weakness in control or accounting.

Medium – important issues to be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility

Action should be taken within an appropriate timeframe to address a significant weakness in

control or accounting.

Low – problems of a more minor nature which provide scope for improvement

Action is desirable to strengthen or supplement existing controls or accounting arrangements.

Management should take action as resources permit.

This report

This report is not intended to be a fully comprehensive review of the system of internal

financial control at the Council. We have instead focused our testing on key risk areas and

carried out our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.

We have prepared this report solely for use by yourselves and within your organization and,

therefore, we believe that it would not be appropriate for it to be made available to third

parties. If such a third party were to obtain a copy without our prior written consent, we would

not accept any responsibility for any reliance they might place upon it.

Acknowledgement

We are grateful for the help and support provided by relevant officers during our audit.

APPENDIX A

15



6

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
:
M
a
tt
e
rs
a
ri
s
in
g
fr
o
m
th
e
2
0
0
7
/0
8
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t
o
f
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
u
d
it

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

1
V
A
T
s
h
e
lt
e
r

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
is
in
a
n
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
w
it
h
C
ro
s
s
K
e
y
s
H
o
m
e
s

(C
K
H
)
th
a
t
re
s
u
lt
s
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
re
c
e
iv
in
g
a
p
a
y
m
e
n
t

e
a
c
h
y
e
a
r
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
V
A
T
s
a
v
in
g
s
o
n
fu
tu
re
c
a
p
it
a
l
w
o
rk
s

(k
n
o
w
n
a
s
th
e
‘V
A
T
s
h
e
lt
e
r’
).
T
h
e
s
e
s
a
v
in
g
s
a
re
m
a
d
e
b
y

C
K
H
a
n
d
it
p
a
y
s
5
0
%
o
f
a
n
y
s
a
v
in
g
s
m
a
d
e
to
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
is
in
fo
rm
e
d
o
f
th
e
le
v
e
l
o
f
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
it
is
d
u
e
to

re
c
e
iv
e
b
y
C
K
H
,
a
n
d
in
c
lu
d
e
s
th
is
in
th
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.
F
o
r

2
0
0
7
/0
8
,
th
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
in
th
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
w
a
s

£
2
.8
8
5
m
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
s
e
e
k
fu
rt
h
e
r

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
o
v
e
r
th
e
fi
g
u
re
s
n
o
ti
fi
e
d
b
y
C
K
H
.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
th
a
t
th
e
fi
g
u
re
s
n
o
ti
fi
e
d
to
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il

b
y
C
K
H
a
re
n
o
t
in
lin
e
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
o
f
th
e
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
o
r

th
a
t
th
e
fi
g
u
re
to
b
e
p
a
id
is
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
.

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
o
b
ta
in
s
m
o
re

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
o
v
e
r
th
e
v
a
lu
e
o
f
th
e
V
A
T
s
h
e
lt
e
r
to
b
e

p
a
id
b
y
C
K
H
e
a
c
h
y
e
a
r.

T
h
is
c
o
u
ld
b
e
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
b
y
a
n
a
n
n
u
a
l
m
e
e
ti
n
g
w
it
h

C
K
H
to
d
is
c
u
s
s
th
e
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
C
K
H
h
a
v
e
c
a
rr
ie
d
o
u
t

to
c
a
lc
u
la
te
th
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
d
u
e
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
lia
is
e
w
it
h
C
K
H
in
o
rd
e
r
to
g
a
in

m
o
re
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
o
v
e
r
th
e
v
a
lu
e
o
f
th
e
V
A
T

S
h
e
lt
e
r.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
A
p
ri
l

2
0
0
9
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

16



7

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

2
L
e
a
s
e
s
–
v
a
lu
e
fo
r
m
o
n
e
y

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
o
f
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
le
a
s
e
s
re
v
e
a
le
d
a
le
a
s
e
d
a
ti
n
g

b
a
c
k
to
1
9
8
0
o
n
a
n
in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l
u
n
it
fo
r
£
1
5
6
k
.
T
h
is
p
ro
p
e
rt
y

is
o
w
n
e
d
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
h
ic
h
le
a
s
e
s
it
to
a
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
fo
r

a
n
o
m
in
a
l
a
m
o
u
n
t,
w
h
ic
h
in
tu
rn
le
a
s
e
s
it
b
a
c
k
to
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
a
n
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
in
p
la
c
e
th
a
t
it

w
ill
p
a
y
a
t
le
a
s
t
7
5
%
o
f
th
e
m
a
rk
e
t
v
a
lu
e
o
f
re
n
t
fo
r
th
e

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
to
th
e
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g

v
a
lu
e
fo
r
m
o
n
e
y
b
y
b
e
in
g
a
p
a
rt
y
to
th
is
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t.

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
re
v
ie
w
s
le
a
s
e

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
in
p
la
c
e
to
d
e
te
rm
in
e
w
h
e
th
e
r
th
e
s
e

a
re
th
e
m
o
s
t
s
u
it
a
b
le
te
rm
s
fo
r
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il,
a
n
d
if
n
o
t,

w
h
e
th
e
r
it
is
p
o
s
s
ib
le
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
c
a
n
e
x
it
th
e

le
a
s
e
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

L
e
a
s
e
s
w
ill
b
e
th
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
o
f
a
d
e
ta
ile
d
re
v
ie
w
in

p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
fo
r
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
(I
F
R
S
).
V
a
lu
e
fo
r
M
o
n
e
y
w
ill
b
e

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
in
to
th
is
re
v
ie
w
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
D
u
ri
n
g
2
0
0
9
/1
0
.

3
A
s
s
e
ts
w
it
h
a
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
n
e
t
b
o
o
k
v
a
lu
e

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
t
re
g
is
te
r
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
£
5
3
2
,0
0
0

o
f
a
s
s
e
ts
c
a
rr
ie
d
a
t
a
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
v
a
lu
e
.
T
h
is
w
a
s
d
u
e
to

in
c
o
rr
e
c
t
c
h
a
rg
e
s
fo
r
d
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
b
e
in
g
m
a
d
e
a
g
a
in
s
t

th
e
s
e
a
s
s
e
ts
.
T
h
is
re
s
u
lt
e
d
in
a
n
im
m
a
te
ri
a
l

m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
in
th
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
a
re
v
ie
w

o
f
th
e
fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
t
re
g
is
te
r
o
n
c
e
d
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
c
h
a
rg
e
s

h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
a
s
s
e
ts
w
it
h

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
v
a
lu
e
s
a
re
n
o
t
in
c
lu
d
e
d
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
e
c
k
s
a
re
b
e
in
g
b
u
ilt
in
to
th
e
p
ro
c
e
s
s

fo
r
2
0
0
8
/0
9
c
lo
s
u
re
o
f
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
F
e
b
2
0
0
9
.

3
C
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
o
f
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
re
g
is
te
r

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
d
v
is
e
d
o
f
a
n
y
n
e
w
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
e
n
te
rs
in
to
,
a
n
d
re
ly
o
n
O
ff
ic
e
rs
m
a
k
in
g
th
e
m

a
w
a
re
o
f
a
n
y
n
e
w
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
e
n
te
re
d
in
to
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
th
e
re

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
o
u
ld
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
a
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
th
a
t

m
a
k
e
s
it
a
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
s
ig
n
in
g

p
ro
c
e
s
s
fo
r
L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
to
b
e
a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
s
e
n
t
a

c
o
p
y
o
f
th
e
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
F
o
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
,
a
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t

C
u
rr
e
n
t
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
a
lr
e
a
d
y
re
q
u
ir
e
th
a
t

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
o
v
e
r
£
5
0
K
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
re
fe
rr
e
d
to
le
g
a
l,

a
s
re
fl
e
c
te
d
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
in
te
ra
c
ti
v
e

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
G
u
id
e
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

17



8

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

is
n
o
fo
rm
a
l
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
in
p
la
c
e
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
a
ll

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
a
re
re
p
o
rt
e
d
to
L
e
g
a
l
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
,
a
n
d

c
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
c
h
e
c
k
s
a
re
n
o
t
c
a
rr
ie
d
o
u
t.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
a
ll
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
a
n
d

in
c
lu
d
e
d
o
n
th
e
re
g
is
te
r.
T
h
is
is
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
a
n
is
s
u
e

g
iv
e
n
th
e
n
e
w
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
ru
le
s
fo
r
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
in
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts
,

w
h
ic
h
re
q
u
ir
e
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
a
c
o
m
p
le
te
lis
t
o
f

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
to
a
s
s
is
t
in
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
a
n
y
s
u
c
h
in
s
tr
u
m
e
n
ts
,

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
c
h
e
c
k
lis
t
c
o
u
ld
b
e
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
,
w
it
h
th
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
th
a
t
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
is
s
e
n
t
to
L
e
g
a
l

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
is
in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
a
n
e
w
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

re
g
is
te
r
w
h
ic
h
w
ill
c
a
p
tu
re
a
ll
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
o
v
e
r

£
1
0
K
.
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
P
ro
je
c
t
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
9

4
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
re
c
e
iv
a
b
le
te
s
ti
n
g

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
is
s
u
e
s
w
e
re
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
o
u
r

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
re
c
e
iv
a
b
le
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
te
s
ti
n
g
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
t
th
e

in
te
ri
m
a
u
d
it
:

 
O
ra
c
le
h
a
s
th
e
fa
c
ili
ty
fo
r
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
s
to
b
e

ra
is
e
d
.
R
e
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
s
a
re
th
o
s
e
ra
is
e
d
fo
r
th
e

s
a
m
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
o
v
e
r
a
s
e
t
p
e
ri
o
d
o
f
ti
m
e
(f
o
r

e
x
a
m
p
le
,
1
/1
2
th
o
f
a
n
a
n
n
u
a
l
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
in
v
o
ic
e
d

e
a
c
h
m
o
n
th
).
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
in
s
o
m
e
c
a
s
e
s
w
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
th
a
t
th
e
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
fa
c
ili
ty
w
it
h
in

O
ra
c
le
w
a
s
n
o
t
b
e
in
g
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
u
ti
lis
e
d
.

In
s
te
a
d
,
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
s
w
e
re
b
e
in
g
ra
is
e
d

m
a
n
u
a
lly
;
a
n
d

 
A
s
p
a
rt
o
f
o
u
r
te
s
ti
n
g
o
f
b
a
d
d
e
b
ts
,
w
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

a
s
m
a
ll
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
in
s
ta
n
c
e
s
w
h
e
re
w
ri
te
-o
ff
s

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
o
u
ld
m
a
k
e
u
s
e
o
f
th
e
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e

fa
c
ili
ty
w
h
e
n
e
v
e
r
p
o
s
s
ib
le
,
to
re
d
u
c
e
th
e
n
e
e
d
to
ra
is
e

m
a
n
u
a
l
in
v
o
ic
e
s
.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
o
u
ld
a
ls
o
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
a
ll
d
e
b
ts
a
re

w
ri
tt
e
n
-o
ff
in
lin
e
w
it
h
th
e
S
ta
n
d
in
g
O
rd
e
rs
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
in
v
o
ic
e
s
b
y
in
s
ta
lm
e
n
ts
a
re
ra
is
e
d

w
h
e
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.
U
s
e
rs
w
ill
b
e
re
m
in
d
e
d
th
a
t

th
is
fa
c
ili
ty
e
x
is
ts
w
it
h
in
O
ra
c
le
.
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r,
J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
0
9
.

T
h
e
p
o
lic
y
fo
r
w
ri
te
o
ff
d
e
b
ts
w
a
s
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
a
t
F
u
ll

C
o
u
n
c
il
in
M
a
y
2
0
0
8
.
A
m
o
u
n
ts
£
5
k
-
£
1
0
k
c
a
n

n
o
w
b
e
w
ri
tt
e
n
o
ff
b
y
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
.
T
h
e
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
ill
b
e

fu
lly
u
p
d
a
te
d
o
n
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
e
n
io
r

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
R
e
v
ie
w
.
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r,
A
p
ri
l

2
0
0
9
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

18



9

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
e
e
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
in
lin
e
w
it
h
th
e

S
ta
n
d
in
g
O
rd
e
rs
.
T
h
e
s
e
s
ta
te
th
a
t
fo
r
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l

d
e
b
ts
b
e
lo
w
£
5
,0
0
0
,
th
e
s
e
m
u
s
t
b
e
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
b
y

th
e
D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
a
n
d
,
a
b
o
v
e

£
5
,0
0
0
,
b
y
th
e
C
a
b
in
e
t
m
e
m
b
e
r
fo
r
F
in
a
n
c
e
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
in
s
o
m
e
c
a
s
e
s
w
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
w
ri
te
-

o
ff
s
o
f
d
e
b
ts
b
e
lo
w
£
5
,0
0
0
h
a
d
b
e
e
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d

b
y
th
e
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
F
in
a
n
c
e
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
o
r

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
b
y
n
o
t
m
a
k
in
g
u
s
e
o
f
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
s
u
c
h
a
s

th
e
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
s
y
s
te
m
,
re
p
e
a
t
in
v
o
ic
e
s
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e

ra
is
e
d
a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
o
r
o
n
a
ti
m
e
ly
b
a
s
is
.
M
o
re
o
v
e
r,
a
s

ra
is
in
g
m
a
n
u
a
l
in
v
o
ic
e
s
is
a
m
o
re
la
b
o
u
r
in
te
n
s
iv
e

p
ro
c
e
s
s
,
fa
ilu
re
to
u
s
e
th
e
re
p
e
a
t
fa
c
ili
ty
is
n
o
t
th
e
m
o
s
t

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
u
s
e
o
f
o
ff
ic
e
rs
’
ti
m
e
a
n
d
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
.

In
a
d
d
it
io
n
,
w
h
e
re
w
ri
te
-o
ff
s
a
re
n
o
t
m
a
d
e
in
lin
e
w
it
h
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
S
ta
n
d
in
g
O
rd
e
rs
,
th
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
d
e
b
ts
m
a
y

b
e
w
ri
tt
e
n
-o
ff
w
it
h
o
u
t
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
a
s
to
re
a
s
o
n
o
r

re
c
o
v
e
ra
b
ili
ty
.

5
B
a
rc
la
y
c
a
rd
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
c
a
rd
s

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

A
s
p
a
rt
o
f
o
u
r
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
p
a
y
a
b
le
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
te
s
ti
n
g

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
t
th
e
in
te
ri
m
a
u
d
it
,
w
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
th
e
c
o
n
tr
o
ls

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
th
e
is
s
u
in
g
o
f
B
a
rc
la
y
c
a
rd
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
c
a
rd
s
.

T
h
e
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
P
a
y
a
b
le
T
e
a
m
m
a
in
ta
in
s
a
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t
o
f

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
p
e
ri
o
d
ic
a
lly
re
v
ie
w
s

th
e
d
a
ta
h
e
ld
o
n
c
a
rd
h
o
ld
e
rs
,
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
th
is
is

a
c
c
u
ra
te
a
n
d
th
e
d
e
le
g
a
te
d
ri
g
h
ts
fo
r
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l

o
ff
ic
e
rs
a
re
s
ti
ll
d
e
e
m
e
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
C
a
rd
s
w
ill
b
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
.
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r,
q
u
a
rt
e
r
o
n
e
2
0
0
9
/1
0
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

19



1
0

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

th
o
s
e
h
o
ld
in
g
c
a
rd
s
,
s
h
o
w
in
g
n
a
m
e
a
n
d
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
lim
it
s
.

A
s
p
a
rt
o
f
o
u
r
te
s
ti
n
g
,
w
e
a
g
re
e
d
d
a
ta
o
n
th
is
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t

to
th
e
in
it
ia
l
c
a
rd
h
o
ld
e
r
re
q
u
e
s
t
fo
rm
,
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
fo
r
e
a
c
h

c
a
rd
h
o
ld
e
r
a
n
d
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
b
y
th
e
ir
lin
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
o
r

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
W
h
e
n
a
g
re
e
in
g
th
e
d
e
ta
ils
o
f
lim
it
s

fr
o
m
th
e
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t
to
th
e
in
it
ia
l
re
q
u
e
s
t
fo
rm
,
tw
o
o
f
th
e

fi
v
e
c
a
rd
h
o
ld
e
rs
re
v
ie
w
e
d
h
a
d
d
if
fe
re
n
t
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
lim
it
s

o
n
th
e
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t
th
a
n
th
a
t
s
h
o
w
n
o
n
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
fo
rm
.

F
u
rt
h
e
r
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
re
v
e
a
le
d
th
a
t
th
e
c
a
rd
lim
it
s
h
a
d

b
e
e
n
le
g
it
im
a
te
ly
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
s
in
c
e
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n

fo
rm
w
a
s
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
in
b
o
th
c
a
s
e
s
,
n
o

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
fo
rm
s
c
o
u
ld
b
e
fo
u
n
d
.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
th
e
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f

p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
c
a
rd
u
s
e
w
ill
b
e
m
a
d
e
p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
if

d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
e
x
is
t
b
e
tw
e
e
n
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
h
e
ld
o
n

c
a
rd
h
o
ld
e
rs
.

L
o
w
p
ri
o
ri
ty

6
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
re
v
ie
w
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y

G
e
n
e
ra
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
(I
T
G
C
s
)

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
te
a
m
h
a
v
e
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
a

n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
IT
re
la
te
d
re
v
ie
w
s
o
v
e
r
th
e
p
a
s
t
tw
o
y
e
a
rs
.
W
e

re
v
ie
w
e
d
th
e
s
e
re
p
o
rt
s
a
n
d
n
o
te
d
th
e
p
ro
g
re
s
s
m
a
d
e
o
n

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
h
a
v
e
c
a
rr
ie
d
o
u
t
a
fo
llo
w
u
p
o
f
th
e

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
o
n
a
ti
m
e
ly
b
a
s
is
.

M
e
d
iu
m
p
ri
o
ri
ty

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
w
ill
b
e

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
in
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
c
ti
o
n
p
la
n
fo
r
e
a
c
h
a
u
d
it
.
H
e
a
d
o
f

IC
T
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

20



1
1

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
ra
is
e
d
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
h
a
n
g
e
Q
u
a
lit
y

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
,
In
te
rn
e
t
a
n
d
N
e
tw
o
rk
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
p
o
rt
s

fr
o
m
2
0
0
6
/0
7
a
n
d
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
th
a
t
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
p
ro
g
re
s
s
h
a
s

b
e
e
n
m
a
d
e
,
th
e
re
a
re
s
ti
ll
s
e
v
e
ra
l
is
s
u
e
s
th
a
t
re
m
a
in

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
,
a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
w
h
ic
h
a
re
'h
ig
h
p
ri
o
ri
ty
'

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

In
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
w
e
n
o
te
d
o
n
e
h
ig
h
ri
s
k
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

w
h
ic
h
w
a
s
to
b
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
to

th
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
c
ti
o
n
p
la
n
w
it
h
in
th
e
re
p
o
rt
b
u
t
w
h
ic
h

re
m
a
in
e
d
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
a
s
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
.
A
n
u
m
b
e
r

o
f
is
s
u
e
s
a
ls
o
re
m
a
in
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
IT
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
.

R
is
k

F
a
ilu
re
to
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
IT
re
la
te
d

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
o
n
a
ti
m
e
ly
b
a
s
is
m
a
y
e
x
p
o
s
e
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
to
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
ri
s
k
s
.

7
P
a
y
ro
ll
te
s
ti
n
g

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

T
e
s
ti
n
g
o
f
p
a
y
ro
ll
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
a
t
th
e
in
te
ri
m
a
u
d
it
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

th
a
t
o
f
2
5
s
ta
rt
e
rs
s
e
le
c
te
d
fo
r
re
v
ie
w
,
1
s
ta
rt
e
r
fo
rm
c
o
u
ld

n
o
t
b
e
lo
c
a
te
d
.
O
f
2
5
le
a
v
e
rs
s
e
le
c
te
d
fo
r
re
v
ie
w
,
4
le
a
v
e
r

fo
rm
s
c
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
lo
c
a
te
d
.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
a
re
in
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

o
r
re
m
o
v
e
d
fr
o
m
th
e
p
a
y
ro
ll
s
y
s
te
m
.

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
re
m
in
d
s
s
ta
ff
o
f
th
e

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
o
f
re
ta
in
in
g
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
re
la
ti
n
g
to

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.
In
th
e
lo
n
g
e
r
te
rm
,
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
m
a
y
w
is
h

to
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
m
e
th
o
d
s
o
f
s
to
ri
n
g
d
a
ta
.

F
o
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
,
in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
a
s
y
s
te
m
to
s
c
a
n
in

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
,
a
s
s
e
e
n
in
th
e
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
P
a
y
a
b
le
a
n
d

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
a
n
d
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
,
m
a
y
h
e
lp
to

im
p
ro
v
e
th
e
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
re
la
ti
n
g
to
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f

p
a
y
ro
ll
d
a
ta
.

T
h
e
H
R
S
h
a
re
d
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
w
ill
re
m
in
d
a
ll

s
ta
ff
o
f
th
e
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
o
f
re
ta
in
in
g
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts

a
n
d
fi
lin
g
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
in
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l
fi
le
s
b
y
3
0
th

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
2
0
0
8
.

H
R
S
h
a
re
d
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
h
a
s
b
e
g
u
n
w
o
rk

w
it
h
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d

im
p
le
m
e
n
t
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
m
e
a
n
s
o
f

d
a
ta
s
to
ra
g
e
.
T
h
is
w
o
rk
is
in
it
s
in
fa
n
c
y
a
n
d
o
n
-

g
o
in
g
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

21



1
2

O
B
S
E
R
V
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
R
IS
K

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
A
N
D
P
R
IO
R
IT
Y

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
A
N
D
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

L
o
w
p
ri
o
ri
ty

8
F
in
a
n
c
in
g
o
f
c
a
p
it
a
l
s
p
e
n
d
n
o
te

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
a
c
o
m
p
le
x
a
n
d
d
e
ta
ile
d
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
o
f

c
a
p
it
a
l
s
p
e
n
d
n
o
te
,
s
h
o
w
in
g
e
a
c
h
g
ra
n
t
a
w
a
rd
e
d
to
th
e

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
th
e
c
a
p
it
a
l
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.

T
e
s
ti
n
g
re
v
e
a
le
d
th
a
t
in
s
o
m
e
c
a
s
e
s
it
w
a
s
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
to

tr
a
c
e
g
ra
n
t
in
c
o
m
e
to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
fr
o
m
th
e

re
le
v
a
n
t
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
th
is
d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
n
o
te
m
a
y
b
e
m
is
s
ta
te
d
.

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t,
if
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
is
h
e
s
to

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
in
c
lu
d
in
g
s
u
c
h
a
d
e
ta
ile
d
n
o
te
in
it
s

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
,
it
e
n
s
u
re
s
th
a
t
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
is

a
v
a
ila
b
le
fo
r
a
ll
g
ra
n
ts
.

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
,
it
m
a
y
w
is
h
to
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
a
n
o
th
e
r
fo
rm
a
t

fo
r
th
e
n
o
te
;
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
,
o
n
e
th
a
t
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
s
h
o
w

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
g
ra
n
ts
.

L
o
w
p
ri
o
ri
ty

T
h
is
n
o
te
w
ill
b
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
,
in
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
e

E
x
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
o
rs
,
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
c
lo
s
u
re
o
f

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
M
a
rc
h
2
0
0
9
.

9
F
in
a
n
c
e
le
a
s
e
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s

O
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

W
h
e
n
re
v
ie
w
in
g
th
e
fi
n
a
n
c
e
le
a
s
e
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

th
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
,
it
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
th
e
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
in
te
re
s
t
ra
te

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
a
s
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t.

T
h
e
c
o
rr
e
c
t
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
w
o
u
ld
b
e
in
c
lu
d
in
g
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts

a
p
p
lie
d
in
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
a
s
,
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
n
g
th
e
s
e
in
a
rr
e
a
rs
.
T
h
is
re
s
u
lt
e
d
in
a
tr
iv
ia
l

m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
to
th
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

R
is
k

T
h
e
re
is
a
ri
s
k
th
a
t
fi
n
a
n
c
e
le
a
s
e
fi
g
u
re
s
a
re
m
is
s
ta
te
d
.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
o
u
ld
re
v
ie
w
it
s
m
e
th
o
d
fo
r
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
n
g

in
te
re
s
t
le
a
s
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
,
a
n
d
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
th
e
c
o
rr
e
c
t

m
e
th
o
d
is
b
e
in
g
u
s
e
d
to
c
a
lc
u
la
te
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
in
te
re
s
t

ra
te
s
.

L
o
w
p
ri
o
ri
ty

T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
re
v
ie
w
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
c
lo
s
u
re
o
f

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
M
a
rc
h
2
0
0
9
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

22



1
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
:
F
o
ll
o
w
u
p
o
f
p
ri
o
r
y
e
a
r
is
s
u
e
s

T
h
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
ta
b
le
lis
ts
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
in
th
e
p
ri
o
r
y
e
a
r
a
u
d
it
th
a
t
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
b
e
e
n
re
s
o
lv
e
d
a
n
d
w
e
re
n
o
t
c
o
v
e
re
d
b
y
o
u
r
R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
(A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
0
7
),
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
P
ro
c
e
s
s
M
a
p
p
in
g
(J
u
n
e
2
0
0
8
)
a
n
d
D
e
b
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
fo
llo
w
-u
p
re
p
o
rt
(A
u
g
u
s
t
2
0
0
8
):

O
R
IG
IN
A
L
R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N

A
C
T
IO
N
T
A
K
E
N
A
N
D
F
U
R
T
H
E
R

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
/
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

1
F
ix
e
d
a
s
s
e
ts

W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
c
o
m
p
le
te
s
it
s
e
x
e
rc
is
e
to

c
le
a
n
s
e
th
e
d
a
ta
in
it
s
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
h
e
e
t
s
o
th
a
t
a
s
s
e
ts
w
it
h
a

v
a
lu
e
o
f
z
e
ro
a
re
w
ri
tt
e
n
o
u
t
o
f
fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
ts
,
o
r
a
re

re
v
a
lu
e
d
to
re
fl
e
c
t
th
e
ir
c
a
rr
y
in
g
a
m
o
u
n
t.

W
e
a
ls
o
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
c
o
m
p
le
te
s
it
s

e
x
e
rc
is
e
to
id
e
n
ti
fy
a
ll
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
ts
w
it
h
n
o
n
-

s
p
e
c
if
ic
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
,
a
n
d
th
a
t
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
a
re
p
u
t
in
p
la
c
e

to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
a
ll
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
c
a
p
it
a
l
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
is

re
c
o
rd
e
d
w
it
h
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
d
e
ta
il
in
th
e
fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
t
re
g
is
te
r.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
re
m
o
v
e
d
£
8
.4
m
w
o
rt
h
o
f
a
s
s
e
ts
w
it
h
a
n
il

n
e
t
b
o
o
k
v
a
lu
e
o
r
n
o
n
-s
p
e
c
if
ic
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
fr
o
m
it
s

fi
x
e
d
a
s
s
e
t
re
g
is
te
r
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
2
0
0
7
/0
8
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
y
e
a
r.

In
a
d
d
it
io
n
,
w
e
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
w
h
e
re
a
s
s
e
ts
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n

p
u
t
o
n
to
th
e
re
g
is
te
r
in
th
e
y
e
a
r,
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
n
a
rr
a
ti
v
e

a
n
d
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
in
c
lu
d
e
d
to
e
n
a
b
le
th
e

a
s
s
e
t
to
b
e
e
a
s
ily
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
o
u
r
te
s
ti
n
g
d
id
re
v
e
a
l
a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
a
s
s
e
ts

in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
th
e
a
s
s
e
t
re
g
is
te
r
w
it
h
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e

d
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
.
W
e
h
a
v
e
ra
is
e
d
a
n
is
s
u
e
re
la
ti
n
g
to
th
is

in
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
.

Is
s
u
e
p
a
rt
ia
ll
y
re
s
o
lv
e
d

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
h
e
c
k
s
a
re
b
e
in
g
b
u
ilt
in
to
th
e
p
ro
c
e
s
s

fo
r
2
0
0
8
/0
9
c
lo
s
u
re
o
f
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
F
e
b
2
0
0
9
.

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

23



1
4

O
R
IG
IN
A
L
R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N

A
C
T
IO
N
T
A
K
E
N
A
N
D
F
U
R
T
H
E
R

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S

M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
/
T
IM
E
T
A
B
L
E

F
O
R
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N

2
C
a
s
h
fl
o
w
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
h
o
u
ld
re
v
ie
w
it
s
m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
fo
r
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g

th
e
C
a
s
h
F
lo
w
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
p
re
p
a
re
o
n
e
th
a
t
I)
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y

s
tr
ip
s
o
u
t
a
c
c
ru
a
ls
a
n
d
p
re
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
o
r
th
a
t
II
)
u
s
e
s
th
e

“d
ir
e
c
t
m
e
th
o
d
”
to
c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
id
e
n
ti
fy
a
ll
n
o
n
-c
a
s
h

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
is
is
s
u
e
w
a
s
ra
is
e
d
in
th
e
p
ri
o
r
y
e
a
r
d
u
e
to
th
e

in
c
lu
s
io
n
o
f
a
b
a
la
n
c
in
g
fi
g
u
re
o
f
£
1
.3
m
in
th
e
n
o
te
s

to
th
e
C
a
s
h
F
lo
w
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t.
W
e
n
o
te
th
a
t
a

b
a
la
n
c
in
g
fi
g
u
re
o
f
£
0
.7
6
m
is
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
th
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t

y
e
a
r
n
o
te
s
.

It
w
a
s
c
le
a
r
th
a
t
e
ff
o
rt
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
m
a
d
e
th
is
y
e
a
r
to

re
d
u
c
e
th
e
v
a
lu
e
o
f
th
e
b
a
la
n
c
in
g
fi
g
u
re
th
ro
u
g
h

d
e
ta
ile
d
a
n
a
ly
s
is
o
f
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
a
n
d
b
a
la
n
c
e
s
b
y
th
e

o
ff
ic
e
r
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
fo
r
c
o
m
p
ili
n
g
th
e
C
a
s
h
F
lo
w

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t.
W
e
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
s
tr
iv
e
to
e
lim
in
a
te
th
is
b
a
la
n
c
in
g
fi
g
u
re
.

Is
s
u
e
p
a
rt
ia
ll
y
re
s
o
lv
e
d

F
u
rt
h
e
r
w
o
rk
w
ill
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e

c
lo
s
u
re
2
0
0
8
/0
9
in
o
rd
e
r
to
re
d
u
c
e
th
is
b
a
la
n
c
in
g

fi
g
u
re
.
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
M
a
y

2
0
0
9

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

24



15

In the event that, pursuant to a request which you have received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (as the same

may be amended or re-enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made thereunder (collectively, the

“Legislation”), you are required to disclose any information contained in this report, we ask that you notify us promptly and

consult with us prior to disclosing such information. You agree to pay due regard to any representations which we may

make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Legislation to

such information. If, following consultation with us, you disclose any such information; please ensure that any disclaimer

which we have included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies

disclosed.

©2009 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP (a limited liability

APPENDIX A

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



Government and Public Sector

 

Peterborough City Council

CPA Use of Resources – Assessment Results

27



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial
Services Authority for designated investment business.

Gillian Beasley

Chief Executive

Peterborough City Council

Town Hall

Peterborough

PE1 1HQ

January 2009

Dear Gillian

CPA – Use of Resources – Assessment Results

We are pleased to present the summary results of our assessment of the Council’s use of resources, which has been completed in accordance with the

methodology and guidance issued by the Audit Commission. Please contact Chris Hughes on 0207 804 3392 or me on 01603 88

issues you would like to discuss with respect to this report.

Yours sincerely

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

cc Nigel Smith, Audit Commission Relationship Manager

28



3

Contents

Section

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................................

Assessment results ................................................................................................................................................................

Code of Audit Practice and Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies

In April 2008 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief
audited body. The purpose of the statement is to assist auditors and audited bodies by explaining where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end, and what is to be expected
of the audited body in certain areas. Our reports and management letters are prepared in the context of this Statement. Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors
addressed to members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the audited body, and no responsibility is taken by auditors to any Member or officer in
or to any third party.

29



4

Introduction

We have completed our assessment of the Council’s use of resources in

accordance with the methodology and guidance prescribed by the Audit

Commission. The results have been subject to internal and Audit

Commission quality assurance arrangements designed to ensure

compliance with the methodology and guidance and to promote consistency

of assessment between appointed auditors.

The tables in Section 2 set out the results of the assessment and highlight

the areas for improvement based on the criteria devised by the Audit

Commission. Each judgement area consists of a number of key lines of

enquiry and areas of audit focus and evidence. There are also descriptions

of performance against each key line of enquiry (KLoE) showing

performance levels 2, 3 and 4. These translate into the following

assessments

1 = below minimum requirements – inadequate performance

2 = only at minimum requirements – adequate performance

3 = consistently above minimum requirements – performing well

4 = well above minimum requirements – performing strongly

The Audit Commission determines
combining the auditor's separate scores for each of the themes covered,
using a set of rules which it published in the
harder test’. This was updated, after consultation, in February

2006. For 2007/08 the criteria have again been made harder with several

new requirements being added or made compulsory.

Preliminary results were discussed with senior management. The results

were subsequently subject to internal PwC review proc

process of quality assurance coordinated by the Audit Commission.

Audit Commission advised authorities of the overall use of

on 8 December 2008.

The Council’s overall score was a 3
achieved last year. However, the Council improved on five out of eleven
individual theme scores compared to last year. The other six scores
remained the same.

In the “Observations and areas for improvement”
have taken into account some of the KLoEs in the new Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA) that will replace the current Use of Resources
assessment in 2009.

Introduction

30



5

Financial Reporting

How good are the council’s financial accounting and reporting arrangements?

Overview

The working papers provided by the Strategic Finance team were exemplary again this year, ready on the first day of the audit and

links to the statement of accounts. We have reported the Council’s working papers to the Audit Commission as an example of notable practice.

The Council engaged with us throughout the year to discuss accounting issues as they arose. This dialogue ensured that

was efficient as the accounting treatment for significant transactions and balances was agreed in principle before the audit team began

The new financial instruments requirements introduced in the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) were technically challengi

challenges and submitted a robust draft set of accounts to Members for approval in June 2008.

Regarding external accountability, the Council continues to produce useful summary financial information, and can demo

range of stakeholders to inform its decision to prepare an annual report. However, as the Council is currently in the process of calculating its Carbon Footprint

using the new DEFRA toolkit, it has not included sufficient analysis about its environmental footprint in its published financial information.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The Council produces annual accounts in accordance with relevant standards and timetables, supported by comprehensive working

papers

Assessment results

31



6

 The Council promotes external accountability.

Observations and areas for improvement

 The Council may wish to consider reviewing the external reports of Local Authorities who have won awards for their external reporting

notable practice to the Audit Commission. The CAA requires that published reports need to provide an objective, balanced and understandable assessment

of the organisation’s performance in the year.

32



7

Financial Management

How well does the council plan and manage its finances?

Overview

The Council’s overall score against this theme has remained a “3”. The key reason for this is the fact that the Council was not able to demonstrate notable

practice in balance sheet monitoring or asset management. Furthermore, to achieve a “4” the Council needs to demonstrate how its financial plans and

strategies have contributed to the achievement of its corporate objectives.

There was a significant overspend in Children’s Services in 2007/08. However, this overspend was not unexpected. It was flagged as a risk in the Medium Term

Financial Strategy, and budgetary control information recognised the overspend so that Members were aware of it sufficiently early in the year.

the Zero Based Budgeting exercise undertaken in Children’s Services should result in future budget variances of a smaller magnitude.

Notwithstanding the issues in Children’s Services, the Council has continued to improve its financial management arrangements in 2008, building upon the

improvements made last year. For example, the Integrated Business and Financial Planning process (IBFP) involved closer integration of the

Programme Team, who traditionally support the service planning process, and the Strategic Finance Team, who support the financial planning process.

The Council has improved its asset management sufficiently for its score to be increased to a “3” against this KLoE. Members

backlog maintenance, and the Council is able to demonstrate that it makes investment and disposal decisions utilising whole life costing.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The council’s medium-term financial strategy, budgets and capital programme are soundly based and designed to deliver its strategic

priorities

 The council manages performance against budgets

 The council manages its asset base

Observations and areas for improvement

 The Council needs to ensure that it manages the impact of the credit crunch to ensure that its Medium Term Financial Strategy remains achievable;

 The Business Transformation Programme has achieved significant cash savings and process efficiencies. It is important that the Council continues i

in this area;

33



8

 Local communities and other stakeholders need to continue to be engaged in the financial planning process; and

 The Council should consider how improvements in its asset management arrangements can be translated into outcomes, so that its strate

service needs are met.

34



9

Financial Standing

How well does the council safeguard its financial standing?

Overview

The Council’s financial standing is sound. It has managed its budget in the last three years within the available resources.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy explains the risks that were identified in the budget setting round, during which Directors undertook a risk assessment of

their budgets.

Last year we noted that the Council needed to ensure that it continued to embed improvements in the area of debt management

score from falling back. We are pleased to report that improvements continue to be made in debt management and that further initiatives are ongoing in 2008/09.

We note that the Council had invested £3m in Icelandic banks. We note that this investment was in line with the Council’s treasury management polic

time. The treasury management policy is regularly updated and has been reviewed and considered by the Council in the light

market.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The council manages its spending within the available resources

Observations and areas for improvement

 The Council needs to demonstrate a good track record of achieving challenging financial health indicators, particularly those relevant to debt management.

35



10

Internal Control

How well does the council’s internal control environment enable it to manage its significant business risks?

Overview

The Council has made improvements across all of the KLoEs in this area and has achieved a level “3” in 2008. The key reasons for the improved score are as

follows:

 The programme to give Officers relevant training and guidance to enable them to take responsibility for managing risk within their own working

environment was sufficiently embedded during the 2007/08 financial year;

 The assurance framework document that maps the Council's strategic objectives to risks, controls and assurances

 The counter fraud work undertaken by the Investigation Team is proactive, driven by a risk assessment and the Council can demonstrate that the team is

adequately resourced. The Council is successful at pursuing both external and internal frauds; and

 Corrective action is being taken to address weaknesses identified by the Audit Commission’s National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The council manages its significant business risks.

 The council has arrangements in place to maintain a sound system of internal control

 The council has arrangements in place that are designed to promote and ensure probity and propriety in the conduct of its business

Observations and areas for improvement

 The Council should continue to focus on ensuring that risk management is embedded in business processes. We note that improvements have continued to

be made since 31 March 2008 (the cut-off date for this assessment), for example, the Corporate Management Team’s performance management sessions;

 Embed the partnership toolkit, which we understand will enable the Council to obtain assurance on a risk basis of the viability of its significant contractors’ /

partners business continuity plans;

 The Council will need to demonstrate how the Assurance Framework has been used in the process for updating Corporate Risk Registers; and

 The impact of the Audit Committee in providing effective challenge across the Council and independent assurance on the risk management framework and

36



11

associated internal control environment needs to be demonstrated.

37



12

Value for Money

Overview

Although the Council’s expenditure per head remains in the upper quartile of comparative authorities, the Council set a 1.4% rise in 2007/08 Council Tax levels

indicating a Council Tax trend that remains below average for comparator authorities.

However, it remains unclear how the investment being made by the Council in respect of business transformation and service developments is currently

translating into performance outcomes despite some areas of key work i.e. Solutions Centre and revised analysis of performance information with par

areas such as teenage pregnancies. The Council will need to demonstrate further relative improvements in performance i.e. in educational achievement and

relative improvements in ranking with comparator authorities, allied to that of demonstrable efficiencies, as well as building on performance achieved within other

priority areas i.e. Children in care.

Following last year’s comments in respect of the Business Transformation programme, the Council’s implementation and promotion of a robust savings

efficiency programme has been able to clearly demonstrate efficiency savings of £2,821,953 (£2,645,294 cashable), which was very close to the initial budget of

some £3m. Total savings achieved for the period to 2007/08 have been £10,415,300 (Target: £9,245,000). Key actions undertaken during the year to achieve

the efficiencies included:

Review of homecare packages and improved management of services: £646,000

Renegotiation of Council contracts for supplies and services: £917,000

Review of business support posts, new accommodation strategy implemented, and improved customer support: £1,007,000

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The council currently achieves good value for money

 The council manages and improves value for money

38



13

Observations and areas for improvement

The Council should continue to implement the issues raised and recommendations made last year in order to demonstrate continuous improvement. In add

the Council needs to be aware of, and prepare for the revised requirements of the 2008/09 Use of Resources assessment that m

of criteria to ‘characteristics of performance'.

The revised Use of Resources assessment will be broader in scope and embrace wider resource issues such as people, workforce planning

natural resources. In addition it will consider and assess the Council’s approach to mainstreaming the themes of:

 Partnership working.

 Data quality.

 Equalities; and

 Sustainable development.

The forthcoming assessment will place more emphasis on considering outcomes for local people and it is particularly important that the Council recognise that

the revised KLoE are more strategic and focus much more explicitly than previously on value for money achievements, rather than on processes.

In particular the Council will be required to demonstrate:

 Whether arrangements are working effectively in practice.

 What difference they are making.

 Whether they are achieving expected outcomes; and

 Value for money.

39



In the event that, pursuant to a request which Peterborough City Council has received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information

contained in this report, it will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. Peterborough City Council agrees to pay due regard to any

representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and Peterborough City Council shall apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act

to such report. If, following consultation with PwC, Peterborough City Council discloses this report or any part thereof, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has

included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

©2009 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the United Kingdom firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a limited liability

partnership) and other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

40



Government and Public Sector

 

Peterborough City Council

Review of Data Quality arrangements

41



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment

Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for designated investment busi

Ms G Beasley
Chief Executive
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Peterborough
PE1 1HG

December 2008

Dear Sir

Review of Data Quality arrangements

We are pleased to present the summary results of our review of the Council’s arrangements to ensure data quality
completed in accordance with the methodology and guidance issued by the Audit Commission.

Yours faithfully

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

cc J Harrison – Director of Strategic Resources

42



3

Contents

Section

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................................

Summary of findings – Data quality review ................................................................................................................................

Appendix A - Summary of Key Findings and Areas for Improvement................................................................................................

Appendix B – Recommendations arising from detailed spot checks of performance indicators ................................................................

Appendix C – Performance Indicators selected by the Audit Commission ................................................................................................

Code of Audit Practice and Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies

In April 2008 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief

audited body. The purpose of the statement is to assist auditors and audited bodies by explaining where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end, and what is to be expected

of the audited body in certain areas. Our reports and management letters are prepared in the context of this Statement.

Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the audited body, and no responsibilit

auditors to any Member or officer in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

43



4

The Audit Commission requires us to undertake a review of the
Council’s data quality arrangements. The review focuses on all
aspects of data quality at a corporate level across the Council and is
also linked to the requirement for us to conclude on the Council’s use
of resources.

The review of data quality is a three-stage approach prescribed by
the Audit Commission as follows:

Description

Stage 1 Management arrangements - Review of overall
management arrangements to secure data quality.

Stage 2 Completeness check – Collection of non-BVPI data and
variance analysis.

Stage 3 Data quality spot checks - In-depth review of a sample
of PIs (from a list of specified BVPIs and non-BVPIs).

This report sets out the results of our review.

Stage 1 – Management Arrangements

The assessment of the management arrangements in place for data
quality is used to:

 Direct the detailed work that we undertak
spot checks (Stage 3 of the review); and

 Inform our Use of Resources Conclusion in respe
performance information (as reported in our
report).

The work that we have undertaken is also reported to the Audit
Commission to inform its CPA assessment.

The assessment that we have undertaken covers five themes relating
to data quality:

 Governance and leadership;

 Policies and procedures;

 Systems and processes;

 People and Skills; and

 Data use.

Introduction

44



5

Each theme is supported by a number of key lines of enquiry, setting
out areas of audit focus and showing the performance levels required
to be rated as 1, 2, 3 or 4. These performance levels translate into
the following assessments:

1 = below minimum requirements – inadequate performance

2 = only at minimum requirements – adequate performance

3 = consistently above minimum requirements – performing well

4 = well above minimum requirements – performing strongly

The purpose of the score is to describe the maturity of the Council’s
management arrangements for data quality and to identify
constructive recommendations where needed. The score will be
reported in this form to the Audit Commission and will inform the risk
assessment required for Stage 3 of the audit process.

Our Use of Resources Conclusion is reported separately in our Audit
Report on the 2007/08 accounts and is based on a simple
assessment of whether the arrangements in place are adequate (i.e.
consistent with a score of 2-4) or inadequate (i.e. consistent with a
score of 1).

Stage 2 – Completeness Check

The Audit Commission required us to collect the 2007/08 data for a
number of non-Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs). These
are included in the 12 performance indicators (PIs) selected by the
Audit Commission for further testing at Stage 3 of the review. We
were also required to investigate reasons for significant variances in
the performance of these 12 PIs, as notified to us by the Commission.

Stage 3 – Data Quality Spot Checks

Stage 3 of the review requires the 12 PIs selected by the
Commission, as presented in Appendix C, to be subject to in-depth

review and testing on a sample basis. The size and basis of the
sample is dependent upon a risk assessment, informed by the results
of Stages 1 and 2 of the review. The testing include

 Review of the individual management arrangements in place
over the specific PI selected;

 Documentation and assessment of the systems in place for
recording and calculating the PI’s data;

 Testing the accuracy of PI calculation; and

 Data testing.

Information Governance

Allied with data quality is information governance, a topic high on the
government’s agenda following recent high profile incidents and the
publication of the Poynter report in June 2008. Following Cabinet
Office guidance, all local authorities will be required to identify and
review their data transfers. However, this is just one area of r
information governance – information and data security breaches can
occur from weaknesses in the IT environment and underlying
business processes as well as inappropriate behaviours of the people
handling or managing sensitive information or data. W
parties are used to deliver services, these will also need to be
considered and steps taken to ensure that the requirements are met.

The Poynter report, as produced by PwC,
comprehensive review of the information governance agenda.
have developed a tested methodology f
governance. If you would like further information on how we may be
able to assist you in reviewing this important area, please contact
Julian Rickett on 01603 883321 or Debb

45



6

Stage 1 – Management Arrangements

A summary of the results from our review of the Council’s
management arrangements for ensuring data quality, together with
the prior year scores, are presented below. Overall, these scores give
rise to an adequate assessment of the Council’s arrangements in our
Use of Resources conclusion which was reported to the Council in
September 2008. The overall score reported to the Audit Commission
in October in respect to this stage of the audit was “3”. This is an
improvement on the prior year when the Council achieved an overall
score of “2”. We report in Appendix A the detailed findings from
assessment.

Key line of enquiry 2007/08
KLOE
score

2006/07
KLOE
score

Governance and leadership: overall score

 Responsibility for data quality is clearly defined.

 The body has clear data quality objectives.

 The body has effective arrangements for monitoring
and review of data quality.

3

3

2

2

2

2

Policies and procedures: overall score

 A policy for data quality is in place, supported by a
current set of operational procedures and guidance.

3 1

Key line of enquiry

 Policies and procedures are followed by staff and
applied consistently throughout the organisation.

Systems and processes: overall score

 There are appropriate systems in place for collection,
recording, analysis and reporting of data used to
monitor performance, and staff are supported in their
use of these systems.

 The body has appropriate controls in place to ensure
that information systems secure the quality of data used
to report on performance.

 Security arrangements for performance information
systems are robust, and business continuity plans are
in place.

 An effective management framework for data sharing is
in place.

People and skills: overall score

 The body has communicated clearly the responsibilities
of staff, where applicable, for achieving data quality.

 The organization has arrangements in place to ensure
that staff with data quality responsibilities ha
necessary skills.

Summary of findings – Data quality review

46



7

Key line of enquiry 2007/08
KLOE
score

2006/07
KLOE
score

Data use: overall score

 The body has put in place arrangements that are
focused on ensuring that the data supporting
performance information is used to manage and
improve the delivery of services.

 The body has effective controls in place for data
reporting.

3

2

3

2

It should be noted that the assessment has been undertaken against
the criteria specified by the Audit Commission, and reflects the
arrangements to ensure the quality of reported data as opposed to
the review and use of that data. The Audit Commission criteria place
significant weight on the existence of documented policies and
procedures, and on arrangements that ensure or confirm the
robustness of data which, although related, are not simply the
monitoring or use of that data.

Stage 2 – Completeness Check

We completed Stage 2 of the review and reported the results to the
Audit Commission within the timescales specified. We identified no
areas we wish to bring to your attention associated with this part of
the review.

Stage 3 – Data Quality Spot Checks

We selected 6 PIs, from the Audit Commission’s list of selected PIs,
based upon our assessment of the risk associated with the Council’s
arrangements for ensuring data quality and in line with guidance
issued by the Audit Commission. These included the two housing
benefit PIs which the Audit Commission specified as being mandatory
as the testing links into the testing of the Council’s Housing and

Council Tax Benefit grant claim.
of stage 3 were as follows:

 HIP HSSA - % of total private sector homes vacant for more
than six months;

 HIP HSSA - Repeat homelessness;

 BV 82a - Recycling performance;

 BV 82b - Composting performance

 BV 78a - Average time for processing new clai
and council tax benefit); and

 BV 78b - Speed of processing: change in circumstances for
housing and council tax benefit claims.

Of these, we are pleased to report that
Audit Commission as “unfairly stated”. This com
other Councils. Two indicators required amendment as a result of
audit procedures and these amendments were submitted to the Audit
Commission at the conclusion of our review.

Our detailed recommendations arising from S
detailed in Appendix B to this report.

47



8

Governance and leadership

Has the body put in place arrangements at a senior level to secure the quality of data used to manage and report on

Overview

Following the 2007 assessment an action plan was created to progress the Council from a level two authority to a level three.

in the period up to 31 March 2008 and the Council is able to demonstrate progress in a number of key areas of the action plan namely:

 Portfolio Holder for strategic resources has senior member responsibility for data quality and the Strategic Director for the strategic priority “a

efficient and effective” council (with delegated authority from the Chief Executive) is the key officer responsible.

 Issues about data quality are considered by and reported to Directors and Heads of Service (HoS). Regular monthly and quarterly reporting arrangemen

via PPlus are signed off by Lead Business Unit Administrators, prior to review by HoS and Director’s signoff. Reports are then referred through to Strategic

Improvement Division to provide a performance commentary and quarterly reporting to CMT with a risk assessment and criti

 A data quality strategy and policy has been created and communicated through a development group and departmental performance contacts. The policy

and Council’s overall approach is monitored by the Council’s Strategic Improvement Division with the Strategic Director taking the lead role on data quality

issues. The strategy/policy states that data should be captured as quickly as possible after an event/activity and should be captured only once even i

multiple uses.

 The Data Quality Strategy / Policy clearly specifies the roles and responsibilities for Data Quality, is referenced through to the Corporate Plan that

that it is the role of all staff to input/store or otherwise manage data ensuring it is to the highest standard.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 Responsibility for data quality is clearly defined

 The body has clear data quality objectives

 The body has effective arrangements for monitoring and review of data quality

Areas for Improvement

 The Council has made progress in considering data quality as part of the corporate risk management arrangements. However, further work is still required

Appendix A - Summary of Key Findings and Areas for
Improvement

48



9

to explicitly support all level 3 criteria, in particular the need to demonstrate the regular assessment of the risks associated

information. Evidence will be required for the 2009 assessment to demonstrate that key actions/processes have been fully

corporate risk management arrangements.

49



10

Policies and procedures

Has the organisation defined its expectations and requirements in relation to data quality?

Overview

Significant progress has been made by the Council since the last assessment when a Data Quality Policy was under development. This has now been

implemented and covers all criteria for judgement. As well as the policy, further guidance has been provided for staff which clearly explains its structure and use

This documentation was initially communicated through a workshop to staff, but all policies, procedures and guidance are available to all staff using Insite (an

internal intra-net site).

A group meet monthly to identify possible areas of concern. The Council provides a weekly information bulletin for all staff and members of Peterborough City

Council. This newsletter includes information of any policy changes with hyperlinks to the full policy for easier access to staff e.g. The ICT policy (Information,

Communications and Telecoms) policy is accessed through the public folders as well as all other relevant staff policies and guidelines. Examples include

Private usage policy/mobile telephone policy as well as others, as well as HR. The responsibility then resides with Lead Business Unit Administrators

and ensure compliance.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 A policy for data quality is in place, supported by a current set of operational procedures and guidance

 Policies and procedures are followed by staff and applied consistently throughout the organisation

Areas for Improvement

 The Council will need to ensure that data quality arrangements affecting partnership working, where relevant are both fully embedded and cl

demonstrable for the 2009 assessment. Consideration should also be give to ensuring that partner bodies are fully involved an the developm

of future data quality policies, procedures and guidance notes.

50



11

Systems and processes

Are there effective systems and processes in place to secure the quality of data?

Overview

It is acknowledged that the Council has been undertaking developments in this area, but further work is required to fully demonstrate the extent to which the

arrangements are fully embedded.

Performance Plus (PPlus) is Peterborough City Council’s performance system which is in place for the collection, recording, analysis and reporting of the councils
performance. Administrators have been trained throughout with additional support for ensuring the system is secure. These administrators have key
mainlining PPlus as well as responsibility of its operation. Data entry clerks then have the role of adding and amending. Regular group meetings are held to
ensure that any updates to the system are communicated throughout, as well as monitoring and reviewing.  

Lead Business Unit Administrators have the responsibility of the day to day operation of PPlus. A Performance Management Development Group has been set
up (September 2007) to work across the directorates to improve the monitoring and reporting of performance and to disseminate any new issues and chang
original systems and processes. The group has re-aligned performance management to meet the needs for the organisation for the future
linkages from operational services to HoS and reporting through to directors & CMT.

No control mapping has been undertaken to date, although the officers have stated that PPlus does allow errors to be reviewed

arranged as appropriate, it is not clear what arrangements have been put in place to progress this. Whilst performance clinics have been used to monitor

inadequate performance and action plans have been put into place there is no evidence of annual data quality review or results of reviews to top management.

The Council has business continuity plans. These plans cover the organisational critical information systems to ensure protection of records and business

continuity after a disaster. The overall corporate plan is developed through the creation of individual service continuity plans which are stored on

system “Office Shadow”. The Resilience team have trained nominated people in each service to create plans through the use of templates, guidance and train

sessions. These plans have been subjected to a challenge session to ensure that the processes work and that all contingencies are covered. It has recently

been agreed that Peterborough PCT will also use this system and the Council’s process to create its Business continuity plan. However, tests have not

performed on this, but are due in July 2008, as a result reports have not been submitted to management.

The Council has also launched Emergency planning, a full version of this has been issued to heads of services and is available on CD

reference document. A pocket version of this is also available as well as being available on the website.

Protocols for sharing key data internally and externally are still to be developed. However, the Local Strategic Partnership receives reports on a quarterly basis on
the performance of Peterborough’s Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA). Working with both internal and external partners the Council has reviewed the
process that was in place to create the LPSA and created a summary of lessons learned so that these can be addressed and used
the new Local Area Agreement. However, it remains unclear what validation process has been established during the year of assessment for data that has been
provided by partners or other third parties.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 There are appropriate systems in place for collection, recording, analysis and reporting of data used to monitor performance, and staff are

supported in their use of these systems

51



12

 The body has appropriate controls in place to ensure that information systems secure the quality of data used to report on performance

 Security arrangements for performance information systems are robust, and business continuity plans are in place

 An effective management framework for data sharing is in place

Areas for Improvement

Evidence will be required for the 2009 assessment to demonstrate that key actions/processes identified in the Data Quality action plan have been full

implemented and embedded in particular:

 Mapping of controls functions.

 Evidence that a programme of consistent data quality reviews is carried out before reporting to senior management and beyond.

 Performance information systems have built-in controls to minimise the scope for human error or manipulation, and prevent erroneous data entry, missing

data, and unauthorised data changes.

The Council’s current data sharing guidance provides information on sensitivity of data and council information and primarily addresses the Counci

sending information externally. This is available to all staff. However, this does not detail whether and/or how the Council validates data from third parties i.e.

checking samples of data against source records. The proposed Information Management Policy should identify and take account of all instances where data i

shared and also the types of data being shared. The Council should ensure that the policy addresses:

 Adequate processes to validate data from third parties.

 Is approved by senior management.

 Communication to all employees, Members and partners.

 Regular review and data quality assessments carried out by say internal audit.

52



13

People and skills

Does the organisation have the resources in place to secure data quality?

Overview

Key roles and responsibilities of data quality are evidenced in the Data Quality Policy. In addition, there are some specific responsibilities

descriptions for both the Performance Framework Manager and Officer. No other officer’s job descriptions contain specific data quality roles and responsibiliti

although the Performance Management Development Group provide a structure and roles for the central Performance team and the Key Departmental

Performance Contacts (KDPC) and Lead Business Unit Administrators (LBUA’s) network.

There are no stated DQ targets or standards set for staff against which they are assessed. Whilst the PerformancePlus

input time targets, as well as guidelines for inputting, it remains unclear what outcomes and impacts have arisen from the previou

dependent upon the implementation of the Information Management Policy and associated actions.

The Council’s PerformancePlus system has been fully rolled out throughout the Council. This has been completed after a number of

also PPlus training guides for staff to use. On site training sessions have also been held to ensure that roles and responsibilities of all individuals

2008 there have been three sessions with 62 attendees. A support network is available for staff to monitor and respond to weaknesses in data collection and

monitoring. Monthly meetings are held to ensure all areas of concern are discussed but it is not clear how the impact of either

been addressed through training or whether any evaluation has yet been undertaken of the arrangements.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The body has communicated clearly the responsibilities of staff, where applicable, for achieving data quality

 The organisation has arrangements in place to ensure that staff with data quality responsibilities have the necessary skills

Areas for Improvement

Further consideration should be given to our previous recommendations that the Council should:

 Monitor and report on the interventions made by the Strategic Improvement Division and Performance Management Development Group

as this would provide an indication of the state of data quality within the Council, and not just Best Value Performance Indicator data

 Linked to the above, assess the extent and quality of training provided across all departments to ensure that relevant officers have the necessary skills to

ensure the effective collection, recording, analysis and reporting of data.

 Demonstrate whether any levels of inadequate poor performance have led to corrective actions.

 Review future developments that may impact on data quality staff skills and capacity to enable the Council to proactively manage its future training

programmes.

53



14

Data use

Are there effective arrangements and controls in place for the use of data by the organisation?

Overview

The Council continues to develop and embed a culture where performance information is seen as critical to business improvement and the setting of obje

Heads of Service use monthly reports from PerformancePlus to monitor the performance of there service, this includes comments with an explanation on the

performance, as well as identifying what actions are required to achieve the agreed target. A corporate pack is produced on a monthly basis which looks at 8

different perspectives of the Council’s performance i.e. corporate plan, LAA, CPA/CAA, customers, people, finance/VFM, projects and critical issues in order to

highlight areas of concern and to support the council’s decision making process.

Through the restructure of the Strategic Improvement Division the performance of the Council has been refocused with closer monitoring of performan

issues are reported to the CMT on a monthly basis and the improvements required to change any deviations from planned performance are agreed and allocated

to the relevant Director for monitoring and subsequent reporting back.

The Council has arrangements in place to primarily support the validation and reporting of best value performance indicators (Level 2 criteria) and although audit

trail templates are in place for all data returns, as communicated via the Lead Business Unit Administrator network, it is unclear how the Council’s arrangements

address the Level 3 criteria in respect of:

 Validating data returns to government departments; and

 Ensuring senior management approval prior to external reporting to regulators and government departments e.g. IPF, CLG, DH, DEFRA etc.

We understand that some work has been undertaken on the processes in respect of DEFRA information only and that all other information should be covered off

by the quarterly reporting and sign off arrangements by HoS but no further evidence was provided.

Key Lines of Enquiry

 The body has put in place arrangements that are focused on ensuring that the data supporting performance information is used to manage

and improve the delivery of services

 The body has effective controls in place for data reporting

Areas for Improvement

The Council should:

 Continue to develop a review programme that assesses the impact of data quality issues identified through internal and external reports.

 Ensure all data, not just Best Value Performance Indicators, is subject to appropriate senior approval prior to ext

 Develop demonstrable evidence of follow-up action by senior officers and Members to address identified problems to ensure action has been both

implemented and effective.

54



15

 Clarify the arrangements required for external reporting to regulators and government departments.

55



16

Appendix B – Recommendations arising from
detailed spot checks of performance indicators
Indicator Definition Findings

Reservations to Performance Indicators

To generate this indicator, the Council needs to calculate the total
number of private sector homes. To do this, the Council takes the total
number of properties within the Peterborough boundary, as advised by
the District Valuer, and subtracts the number of properties held by
Housing Associations.

We identified that there was an insufficient audit trail to support the
total number of private sector homes. No confirmations had been
received from the majority of the Housing Associations to provide
details of the number of properties they held at 31 March 2008.
Moreover, two of the Associations’ total properties appeared to have
been double-counted. No information was provided by the Council to
explain these duplications or to support the figures subtracted.

The Council should ensure that procedures are in place to obtain
complete and accurate confirmations of the total non-private dwellings
owed/operated by Housing Associations as at 31 March. The Council
should retain evidence to support the calculations made.

We will ensure that we ask Housing
Associations for their stock and request
written confirmation of this on 31 March
2009. This evidence will be retained with
the PI do

Responsible Officer: Belinda Childs.

HIP HSSA % of total private sector
homes vacant for more
than six months

We identified one property, from a sample of twenty, for which there
was no evidence to support the Council’s conclusion that the property
was empty.

Management should ensure that all documentation to support the
status of properties is retained.

Procedures have been put in place to
ensure that all evidence supporting the
status of empty properties is kept/input
onto the M3 system. We are currently
looking at the option of an empty homes
module on M3.

Responsible Officer: Belinda Childs.

56



17

Indicator Definition Findings

In our 2006/07 data quality report we commented that working papers
to support the figures did not include the date the properties became
vacant, and therefore we were unable to undertake test 6 of the Audit
Commission’s testing schedule. We recommended that the importance
of the date for which the data should be sought, and the reasoning for
requesting the information, is appropriately communicated to those
staff collecting it.

No progress has been made against this recommendation during
2007/08 – the date the Council is informed that the property is vacant
is still being used. We therefore re-iterate our recommendation.

In cases where the owner cannot be
located the team will check council tax
records and ask neighbo
when the property became vacant. The
team only use
informed when all other sources have
been exhausted.

Responsible Officer: Belinda Childs.

Other matters arising

BV 82ai

and BV

82aii

BV 165

IPF

Recycling performance

% of pedestrian crossings

with facilities for disabled

people

Cost per library visit

These PIs required amendment during the course of our audit as a
result of the Council becoming aware of additional information that
allowed a revised figure to be calculated. These revised figures were
submitted to the Audit Commission. Two of the PIs (BV165 and IPF)
were outside of the sample under review but as these PIs had been
amended in the prior year we did a high level review of those PIs to
identify whether there was also a similar issue in the current year.

The Council should ensure that sufficient resources are made available
and appropriate timetables put in place to ensure that finalised PI
values can be reported accurately by the submission deadline.

BV82

We have taken the following steps to
make data more reliable and ensure
future on time reporting

57



18

Indicator Definition Findings

Responsible Offi

BV165

A comprehensive data record has been
established for the provision of disabled
facilities at signalised pedestrian
crossings that enables accurate and
timely reporting. Furthermore additional
funding has been committed to
acceleratin
facilities on site such that a greater
compliance with the national criteria can
be achieved, hence improving the
overall performance measure.

Responsible Officer: Peter Tebb

IPF

This indicator is reliant on joint working
between
agreed timescale has been put in place.

Responsible Officer: Heather Walton

58



R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
D
a
ta
Q
u
a
lit
y
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
C
–
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
s
e
le
c
te
d
b
y
th
e
A
u
d
it

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n

C
u
lt
u
re

•
C
o
s
t
p
e
r
lib
ra
ry
v
is
it
(I
P
F
)

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

•
%
o
f
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
w
it
h
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
fo
r
d
is
a
b
le
d
p
e
o
p
le
(B
V
1
6
5
)

•
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
(B
V
8
2
a
)

•
C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
(B
V
8
2
b
)

•
C
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
o
f
p
u
b
lic
p
la
c
e
s
(B
V
1
9
9
a
-
lit
te
r
a
n
d
d
e
tr
it
u
s
/
B
V
1
9
9
b
–
g
ra
ff
it
i
/
B
V

1
9
9
c
–
fl
y
p
o
s
ti
n
g
)

H
o
u
s
in
g

•
P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
o
f
n
o
n
-d
e
c
e
n
t
h
o
m
e
s
(B
V
1
8
4
a
)

•
A
v
e
ra
g
e
re
-l
e
t
ti
m
e
(B
V
2
1
2
)

•
A
v
e
ra
g
e
ti
m
e
in
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
:
h
o
s
te
ls
(B
V
1
8
3
b
)

•
%
o
f
to
ta
l
p
ri
v
a
te
s
e
c
to
r
h
o
m
e
s
v
a
c
a
n
t
fo
r
m
o
re
th
a
n
s
ix
m
o
n
th
s
(H
IP
H
S
S
A
)

•
R
e
p
e
a
t
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
(H
IP
H
S
S
A
)

H
o
u
s
in
g
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

•
A
v
e
ra
g
e
ti
m
e
fo
r
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
n
e
w
c
la
im
s
(h
o
u
s
in
g
a
n
d
c
o
u
n
c
il
ta
x
b
e
n
e
fi
t)
(B
V
7
8
a
)

•
S
p
e
e
d
o
f
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
:
c
h
a
n
g
e
in
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
fo
r
h
o
u
s
in
g
a
n
d
c
o
u
n
c
il
ta
x
b
e
n
e
fi
t

c
la
im
s
(B
V
7
8
b
)

59



In the event that, pursuant to a request which the Council has received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information contained in this

report, it will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. The Council agrees to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in

connection with such disclosure and the Council shall apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act to such report. If, following consultation with PwC,

Council discloses this report or any part thereof, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is reproduced

in full in any copies disclosed.

©2008 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the United Kingdom firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a lim

partnership) and other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

60



AUDIT COMMITTEE  AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: John Peach, Leader of the Council 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources 

John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance 

Tel. 01733 45 2398 

Tel. 01733 38 4564 

 

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Director of Strategic Resources Deadline date : N/A 

1. To note the accounting changes required. 

2. To note the timescale for implementation. 

3. To support the transition to IFRS based accounts. 

4. To note the potential impact on cash reserves and balances that will need to be managed 
through the MTFS. 

5. To request regular update reports on implementation progress. 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

1.1 The Chancellor’s 2008 Budget announced that the annual financial statement of the 
Government Departments and other entities within the Public Sector will be prepared using 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

1.2 For Local Government the accounts relating to 2010/11 need to be IFRS compliant, however as 
a result of ‘IFRS 1 First time adoption of international reporting standards’ the transition towards 
adopting IFRS in practice means the accounts as at the 1st April 2009 will need to be prepared 
in order to produce opening balances. 

1.3 The move to IFRS is extremely complex and will have wide reaching implications not limited to 
the Council’s finance function alone but throughout the Council’s business activities. 

1.4 This report is submitted by the Council’s Section 151 Officer, the Director of Strategic 
Resources, being part of his statutory responsibilities. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to brief the Committee on the IFRS transition, significant changes 
this is likely to bring to the Council’s accounts, and the resource demand of this transitional task.   

2.2 This report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference 2.8.1.5 (which forms 
part of the delegations for regulatory committee functions under Part 3, Section 2) 

 

  [Governance Support/Cabinet Officer to complete this section following liaison with 
Author]   [Do NOT include any other text under this heading]. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO 
If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

 

61



 
4. INTERNATIONAL FINACNIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 

BACKGROUND 

4.1 International financial reporting standards (IFRS) are accounting standards issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  The term IFRS refers to the equivalent to 
UK GAAP, the set of ‘Generally Accepted Accounting Principles’ which the Council’s accounts 
currently comply with. 

4.2 As both business and financial markets become more global, the demand for a single 
international set of accounting standards has increased.  One single set of standards aids the 
preparation, comparability and analysis of financial information for corporate entities.   

4.3 The Chancellor’s 2008 Budget announced the adoption of IFRS in the Public Sector, with the 
context being the need of government for “high value performance data in combination with 
appropriate financial data”. 

IMPLEMENTAION 

4.4 Experience in the Private Sector has shown that the move to IFRS is both lengthy and complex 
and will involve not only the accountants, but internal auditors, human resources, ICT, 
surveyors, procurement and a range of other stakeholders. 

4.5 IFRS adoption requires a rigorous methodology to ensure its strategic success.  PwC note that 
the key milestones include: 

• Implementing a suitable project structure with the different levels of the project and 
everyone’s roles clearly defined; 

• Winning the involvement of all parties and convincing them of the strategic importance 
of the project for the organisation as a whole; 

• Tackling accounting policies to ensure that they comply with IFRS; 

• Planning the best possible use of human resources and finding new resources where 
necessary; 

• Defining and implementing a training plan for each category of participants affected by 
the project; 

• Adjusting information systems to meet the organisation’s new needs and guarantee the 
best cost / benefit ratio of the change by providing broader, more consistent and reliable 
information; 

• Simulating IFRS financial statements before going live, to work out the best ways of 
communicating potential changes in performance trends; 

• Preparing the first financial statements in full compliance with IFRS, making sure that 
stakeholders understand the differences and there are no last minute surprises. 

The impact of IFRS will also need to be considered when making strategic decisions during the 
transition period. 

 TECHNICAL CHANGES 

4.6 There are a number of unique features of local authority accounting, not least the differences 
between Council Tax setting rules and accounting practice.  These features may require CIPFA 
(Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) to provide certain interpretations of 
IFRS in an IFRS-based code, but the track record of IFRS application in the government and 
NHS sectors shows that special interpretations for the public sector are rare. 

4.7 Areas where IFRS is expected to present significant differences for local authorities: 

• Fixed assets, where IFRS requires fixed assets to be held at ‘fair value’ as opposed to 
the current requirement for ‘current value’ 

62



• Leases, where IFRS has a requirement for the leases of land and buildings to be 
accounted for and disclosed separately 

• Defined benefit pension schemes, where there may be a potential change in accounting 
policy for actuarial gains and losses 

• Joint ventures and associates – under IFRS a local authority only needs the power to 
influence another entity (rather than actually exercise it) for it to be treated as part of the 
group. 

4.8 The following table illustrates some further differences  

Significant Some Minor 

Increased disclosures * 

First time adoption 

PFI – Private Finance 
Initiative 

Leases 

Operating Segments 

Infrastructure assets 

Tangible fixed assets 

Investment property 

Intangible assets 

Presentation of financial 
statements 

Cash flow statement 

Accounting policies 

Employee benefits 

Related party transactions 

Business combinations 

Group Accounts 

Inventories 

Provisions 

Government grants 

Revenue 

Post balance sheet events 

Tax 

Foreign exchange rates 

Financial instruments. 

* financial statements in the listed sector increased in size by 60%  

ISSUES 

4.9 As highlighted above the transition to IFRS based accounts is a highly complex area, involving 
the expertise outside, as well as within, the Council’s finance function.   

4.10 The timings for the adoption of IFRS places competing demands on projects like Manor Drive 
Plc, the restructure of Operations Directorate, and the overall redundancy process, all currently 
being undertaken at the Council. 

4.11 Experience in the other sectors have highlighted difficulties in  

•••• sourcing original contract details for leases and larger schemes like PFI 

•••• lack of knowledge and expertise through dependence on consultants 

•••• lack of project team to progress the task 

•••• lack of capacity for the task, noting this is not something for current staff to do on top of 
their ‘day job’ 

•••• consideration given to moving budgeting and planning to IFRS basis to avoid dual 
accounting systems 

•••• consideration to the potential impacts on cash, reserves, and balances through the 
retrospective application (IFRS1) where ‘catch-up’ accounting entries may be required.  

ACTIONS  

4.12 The implementation with be managed as a project by the Corporate Accounting Manager and 
will also report regularly to Audit Committee. 

4.13 Although the council’s 2010/11 accounts will be the first to be prepared on an IFRS basis, there 
will be a number of key tasks to be undertaken prior to that time. These include. 

•••• restating the 2009/10 accounts on an IFRS basis; 

63



•••• the opening balances at 1 April 2009 will need to be on an IFRS basis 

•••• Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) will be on an IFRS basis from 2009/10; and  

•••• The impact on budgets, the council tax, our systems and staff training are all areas 
which need to be considered. 

 

4.14 It is recognised that in the private sector, introduction of IFRS was most successful where key 
stakeholders other than finance were also involved at an early stage.  PwC are leading a 
workshop in February to investigate the impact of IFRS which will involve all the key 
stakeholders.  Following the workshop PwC will produce an impact report detailing the 
implications. 

4.15 In the private sector, 70% of the effort of the IFRS transition was seen to be in restating the 
balance sheet to be on an IFRS basis. 

4.16 Shown at Annex 1 are some of the key actions that will need to be considered. In some 
instances it may not be possible to make substantial progress until further guidance is provided. 

4.17 It is important that we engage with our external auditors throughout the transition period in 
order to establish any audit trail or working paper expectations, materiality considerations, 
preliminary views on accounting treatment, audit timetable and arrangements for ongoing 
communication. 

   
5. CONSULTATION 

No consultations are being considered for this item as this is a statutory change. 
 
6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 As set out in the report. 

 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 The recommendations are made to advise the Committee of the transition to IFRS, to highlight 
the demands and pressures placed on the Council’s resources, and ensure involvement of the 
Committee in this process. 

 
8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The Statement of Accounts will be required to be prepared in accordance with the IFRS by 
2010/11, and this report sets out the main themes required in to ensure the satisfactory 
production of the Statement of Accounts.  The options are therefore limited in order for the 
accounts to be prepared to the regulatory deadline and specification. 

 
9.  IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The implications arising from this report are to consider, in advance, the processes required in 
the transition to IFRS based accounts. 

9.2 To provide the Committee the opportunity to consider the role and requirements of the Council 
to meet the transition to IFRS based accounts.   

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

  PwC, IFRS and local authorities, More than just numbers 

 PwC, International Financial Reporting Standards, What is IFRS?  Your questions answered 

 PwC, Inside IFRS, Helping you make the transition (various issues) 

64



ANNEX 1 
ACTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED 

 

Managing the IFRS conversion project 

• Create a Project Board to oversee the implementation 

• Develop a working group of staff, utilising all affected services 

• Inform Audit Committee of potential implications of IFRS and regularly report to 
committee on progress made  

• Increase awareness at Corporate Management Team level 

• Review staffing resources and the current level of skills and any conflicting 
commitments 

• Review any training needed to help facilitate the introduction of IFRS 

Internal and External Reporting 
• Review any strategic financial implications such as impact on estimates 

• Any impact on measured performance against council ambitions. 

• Gain an understanding on what the likely impact will be on the presentation of 
the income and expenditure statement and balance sheet. 

• Address any changes required due to new disclosure requirements 

• Develop any changes needed to internal communications and management 
information. 

• Establish ways in which to enhance the information published in such 
documents as the annual report 

Data, systems, processes and controls 

• Establish how the required information is to be gathered in order to enable the 
transition 

• Establish controls over data quality and data capture 

• Identify any system enhancements needed to meet any additional requirements 
under IFRS   

• Identify any other changes occurring across the authority which may need to be 
integrated with IFRS 

• Process changes and controls – documentation compliant with corporate 
governance requirements 

 

 

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance ( 384564 

  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources 
 

Deadline date : N/A 

The Audit Committee is asked to:- 

1. Note the Council’s current risk profile 

2. To consider what training should be rolled out to all members 
 

 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 This report is submitted to Audit Committee as a routine planned report on risk 
management. 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 The purpose of this report is to:- 
  

• Provide an update to the committee on the Council’s risk profile and typical actions 
taken to manage the key corporate risks. 

3. TIMESCALE  

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

4. KEY STRATEGIC RISKS 

4.1 Risk Management is an important element of managing a business.  Potential risks are 
scored according to their likelihood and the impact they would have and mitigating actions 
are then taken where appropriate to reduce the risk.   In accordance with its Terms of 
Reference Audit Committee have a responsibility to “monitor the effective development and 
operation of risk management and corporate governance in the council”. 

4.2 The Audit Committee approved the latest revision of the Risk Management Strategy at their 
November 3 meeting.  This report updates the Committee in accordance with the Strategy.  
The strategic risk register is formally reviewed by Corporate Management Team every six 
months, the latest review being January 2009.  The complete Strategic Risk Register will be 
brought to Audit Committee in due course. 

67



4.3 The register covers a wide range of issues and includes a number of risks which are 
deemed high.  These include recently emerging issues such as the impact of the credit 
crunch and failure to achieve the required level of capital receipts to fund the capital 
programme.  The table below details examples of risks and some of the actions taken in 
order to address and mitigate these particular risks. 

 

Examples of Risks Mitigation / Action To Address / Progress 

Impact of the Credit Crunch 
Shortfall in income in several 
areas as a result of the credit 
crunch 

 
The overall financial position of the Council has 
been reviewed in the light of the impact of the 
credit crunch and the MTFS has been updated 
accordingly.  The risks have also been highlighted 
in the MTFS.  The situation will be kept under 
close review. 

Asset Disposals 
The financing of the capital 
programme assumes a certain 
level of capital receipts, failure to 
achieve these will cost the 
Council in additional borrowing 

 
The Asset Disposal programme was also reviewed 
as part of the MTFS and continues to be 
monitored.  Governance arrangements for the 
capital programme are being reviewed. 

 
4.4 There will be a training session for Audit Committee members prior to the meeting where 

more of the strategic risks and actions in place will be discussed.  The Audit Committee is 
also asked to consider what risk management training should be rolled out to all members. 

5. CONSULTATION 

 This report has been issued to the Corporate Management Team for consideration.  

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 Audit Committee scrutinise and review the current risk profile facing the Council. 

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 Risk management is a key component of the Council’s corporate governance framework.  

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 None 

9. IMPLICATIONS 

 Environmental Impact 
 
9.1. The identification of risks and the proper management of those risks in respect of 

environmental issues will ensure that legislation and the Council’s policies and ambitions in 
respect to the environment are met. 

 
 Equal Opportunities 
 
9.2. The identification of risks and proper management of them helps to ensure that legislation 

and the Council’s policies and ambitions in respect to equality are met. 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
9.3. The management of risks in respect to claims and litigation and reviewing how risks are 

controlled could result in reduced financial costs to the Council. Good risk management 
contributes to the efficient use of resources. 

 

68



 Legal Implications 
 
9.4. The proper management of risks should reduce the likelihood of litigation and claims 

against the Council. 
 
 Links with Corporate Priorities 
 
9.5. Managing risks as per the Council’s risk management processes will help the Council to 

deliver effectively the Council’s priorities. 
 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 (Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 

Information) Act 1985) 
  
 

69



70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

 

Contact Officer(s): John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance 

Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

( 384 564 

( 384 557 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT UPDATE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources  Deadline date : N/A 

The Committee is asked to note: 
 
1. The review and progress report on the significant governance issues reported in the Annual 

Governance Statement 2008 
2. The proposed method that will be adopted in the completion of the 2008 / 2009 Statement. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

This report is submitted to the Audit Committee in line with its agreed Work Programme for 
2008 / 2009. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
2.1 The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with 

the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for 
and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In discharging these responsibilities, the 
Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

 
2.2 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) explains how the Council delivers good 

governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements. It also meets the 
requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003, as amended by 
the Accounts & Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2006, which require the Council to publish 
an AGS. 

 
2.3 The purpose of this report is to update members on the progress being made by officers in 

addressing those governance issues reported in the Council's AGS in 2008. 
 
2.4 The AGS brings together all of the council's strategies, initiatives and work plans. It 

provides the basis from which the council can fulfil its role as a community leader in 
Peterborough. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

71



4. PROGRESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 
 
4.1 Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) requires 

audited bodies to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its systems 
of internal control, and publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with the annual 
Statement of Accounts. Internal control is one of the five key lines of enquiry that make up 
the Use of Resources Assessment, which contributes to the Council’s Corporate 
Performance Assessment (CPA) (Comprehensive Area Assessment from April 2009). 

 
4.2 A report of the Chief Internal Auditor to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 31 March 

2008 set out the approach to conducting the review of the effectiveness of the Council's 
governance framework including the system of internal control. In addition, further details 
are contained within the Audit Committee Handbook. 

 
4.3 A further report on 2 June 2008 provided the conclusions to the review and the draft AGS 

was submitted for comment and challenge. Following a number of amendments suggested 
at this meeting, together with additional comments from Corporate Management Team, the 
AGS was formally reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee on 30 June 2008. 
Subsequently, this enabled the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive to authorise 
the document on behalf of the Council for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts for 2007 / 
2008. 

 
4.4 This report provides an update to the action plans and progress made in resolving the 

significant governance issues. The details are included in the Appendix to this report. 
 
4.5 2007 / 2008 was the first year that Councils were required to publish an AGS. Previously 

there was an obligation to produce a Statement on Internal Control (SIC). The AGS 
expanded on the detail that had been required by the SIC, as it reviews the governance 
framework that is in operation within the Council. The governance framework comprises 
the systems, processes, culture and values by which the Council is directed and controlled. 
It sets out the activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives 
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost 
effective services. 

 
4.6 The AGS is audited as part the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts by external 

audit. The external auditor reviews whether the AGS reflects compliance with ‘Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA / SOLACE in 
June 2007. They are obliged to report if it does not comply with proper practices specified 
by CIPFA / SOLACE or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information 
that they are aware of from their audit of the financial statements. In its annual report, the 
External Auditor issued an unqualified opinion on all financial statements including the 
AGS. 

 
4.7 It is therefore proposed that the same format of presenting the AGS will be adopted in 2008 

/ 2009 as was used in 2007 / 2008. This approach will be revised if any additional guidance 
and / or requirements are announced in relation to the AGS. 

 
4.8 It is also intended to use the same process for collating the information and gathering 

evidence regarding the effectiveness of the governance framework in operation within the 
Council with the Chief Internal Auditor as the lead officer. However, it is intended to start 
the process earlier in order to ensure a thorough review is undertaken, and all relevant 
personnel are involved. 

 

72



4.9 To ensure that the 2008 / 2009 AGS is an accurate and true representation of how the 
Council delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements, 
the procedures identified below will be part of the compilation of the AGS: 

 

• Regular meetings will take place with the Chief Internal Auditor and relevant officers 
in Strategic Finance, so that any potential issues arising from Internal Audit reviews 
are identified early; 

• Regular meetings with the Monitoring Officer and relevant officers within Strategic 
Finance will take place to review any monitoring reports that have been submitted 
and to identify any other potential issues that may have arisen; 

• Regular meetings with the Section 151 Officer and relevant officers within Strategic 
Finance will take place to highlight any potential issues; and 

• Effective challenge of Statements received by Directorates in respect of their 
Assurance Statements will take place by relevant officer within Strategic Finance, 
together with the compilation of appropriate evidence that support their responses. 

 
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 The detailed analysis provided in the Appendix highlights significant progress in addressing 

the issues raised in the AGS 2008. 
 
5.2 By its very nature, much of the work will need to continue to ensure the successful delivery 

of key projects. However, these projects are benefiting from enhanced programme 
management processes, regular testing and discipline providing a firm foundation for 
successful delivery. 

 
5.3 Certain key areas have seen significant improvement but remain a priority, for example 

data security arrangements where a statutory deadline of 31 March 2008 is in place. 
 
5.4 Appropriate arrangements have been established to ensure the 2008 / 2009 AGS can be 

produced to timescale. 
 
6. CONSULTATION 
 
  Circulated to senior management for information and approval. 
 
7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

Approval of progress made to date and the plans being adopted to take forward for the 
production of future statements. 

 
8. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
8.1 The production of the AGS is a requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 

(as amended). In addition, the internal control systems contribute to the overall CPA 
scoring of the Council. A strong assurance framework is a significant factor in the 
achievement of an improved score. 

 
8.2 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the AGS for inclusion in the Statement of 

Accounts. To approve the AGS the Committee needs to have assurances that the council's 
governance arrangements are adequate. This report has outlined the progress made on 
actions from 2008.  
 

9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

None considered. Non-compliance would result in the council not meeting best practice 
processes. 

 

73



10. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Financial implications: 
 

• There are no direct financial implications arising directly from this report. However, 
significant resources in the form of officer time will have been required to draw up 
and put in place action plans to address the reported governance issues and 
improve the areas where the weaknesses in the systems of internal control. 

 
Legal implications: 
 

• The AGS complies with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 
2006. The Council is required to test its governance arrangements against the 
principles contained in the CIPFA / SOLACE framework "Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government". The CIPFA / SOLACE document also requires 
the Council to provide an outline of action taken, or proposed, to deal with 
significant governance issues. The Council's AGS 2008 contained such a 
statement. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

  
 Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 
 CIPFA / SOLACE Framework "Delivering Good Governance in Local Government" June 2007 
 Annual Governance Statement 2007 / 2008 
 Audit Committee Handbook 

 

74



A
N
N
U
A
L
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 S
T
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 2
0
0
8
: 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 A
G
A
IN
S
T
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

  G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 I
S
S
U
E
S

 
 T
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 "
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t"
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
p
u
b
lic
 i
n
te
re
s
t.
 

 
A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

A
R
E
A
 F
O
R
 I
M
P
R
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
 

L
E
A
D
 O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 /
 R
E
S
O
L
U
T
IO
N
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

(P
F
I)
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 a
 P
F
I 
fo
r 
th
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
d
e
liv
e
rs
 t
o
 i
ts
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
it
ig
a
te
d
. 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
F
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
is
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 f
o
r 
e
v
e
ry
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
o
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
s
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 a
s
 

w
e
ll 
a
s
 (
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
) 
re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 p
la
n
s
, 
d
o
 s
o
. 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
v
e
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
, 
a
n
 a
c
tu
a
l 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
to
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 -
 t
h
e
 f
lo
o
d
in
g
 o
f 
a
 k
e
y
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
ild
in
g
 -
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 
in
to
 

a
c
ti
o
n
. 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
is
, 
a
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 l
e
a
rn
t,
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

s
m
o
o
th
e
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 /
 m
it
ig
a
te
 a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 d
is
a
s
te
rs
. 
V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y
 C
M
T
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
a
s
te
r 
re
c
o
v
e
ry
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
IC
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 /
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
s
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 

75



A
N
N
U
A
L
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 S
T
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 2
0
0
8
: 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 A
G
A
IN
S
T
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

  
A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

A
R
E
A
 F
O
R
 I
M
P
R
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
 

L
E
A
D
 O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 /
 R
E
S
O
L
U
T
IO
N
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 

d
a
ta
 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
re
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
th
e
 I
C
T
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
h
a
v
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 c
le
a
r 
b
lu
e
 p
ri
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 i
ts
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
 o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
it
s
e
lf
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
y
 d
a
ta
 l
o
s
s
e
s
, 
it
 i
s
 

m
in
d
fu
l 
o
f 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
. 
A
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 

w
a
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
(a
n
d
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
m
) 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
is
s
u
e
 w
it
h
in
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 

c
e
n
tr
e
. 
E
x
e
m
p
la
ry
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
a
s
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
. 

 F
lo
w
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
, 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
c
ry
p
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
a
p
to
p
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
U
S
B
 

d
a
ta
 s
ti
c
k
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
. 
 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 p
a
g
e
s
 o
n
 I
n
s
it
e
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

o
n
 d
a
ta
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
. 

 W
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
 s
to
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
d
a
ta
 t
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
w
it
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 -
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
/ 
E
-C
A
F
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 b
y
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 
A
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r,
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
T
 a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 p
o
lic
ie
s
. 

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 t
im
e
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
d
a
ta
 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
If
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fa
ils
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
, 
c
e
n
tr
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

(i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
D
W
P
).
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
IC
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 
V
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
 

W
h
a
te
v
e
r 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
e
le
c
te
d
, 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 

76



A
N
N
U
A
L
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 S
T
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 2
0
0
8
: 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 A
G
A
IN
S
T
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 I
D
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

  
A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

A
R
E
A
 F
O
R
 I
M
P
R
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
 

L
E
A
D
 O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 /
 R
E
S
O
L
U
T
IO
N
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 

A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 

T
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

th
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 j
o
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
v
e
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
- 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic
, 
p
ri
v
a
te
 o
r 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 t
o
o
lk
it
. 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 

D
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

D
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 w
e
a
k
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
ll
y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 a
 3
 (
fr
o
m
 2
).
 A
 D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

o
f 
d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 b
y
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  

 R
e
g
u
la
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 C
M
T
. 

 

  

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 8 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

 

Contact Officer(s): Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor ( 384 557 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT: TO 31 DECEMBER 2008 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources Deadline date : N/A 

Audit Committee are asked that : 
 
1. The Internal Audit Update Report to 31 December 2008 be received and the Committee note in 

particular: 
 

(a) That the Chief Internal Auditor is of the opinion that based on the works conducted during 
the 9 months to 31 December 2008, internal control systems and governance 
arrangements remain generally sound. 

(b) Progress made against the plan and the overall performance of the section. 
(c) The revision to audit plan activities for Quarter 4. 
(d) The proposals recommended for development of the audit plans for 2009 / 2010. 

 

 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

 This report is submitted to Audit Committee as a routine planned report within the work 
programme of the committee. It sets out Internal Audit performance and progress with regards 
to the 2008 / 2009 Audit Plan (Audit Committee approval: 31 March 2008). 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

 The purpose of this report is to inform the Audit Committee on Internal Audit activities and 
performance progress against the Annual Audit 2008 / 2009 as at 31 December 2008.  

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy Item / Statutory 
Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 
4. OVERVIEW 
 
 This report outlines the work undertaken by Internal Audit up to 31 December 2008, progress 

against our plan and other issues of interest.  
 
 

79



5. ASSURANCE OPINION  
 
5.1 One of four levels of assurance is allocated to each audit review. These assurance levels are: 

FULL; SIGNIFICANT; LIMITED; and NO ASSURANCE. Where concerns have been identified 
resulting in limited or no assurance, the Executive Summaries for these reviews will be 
included in an appendix to this report, once the audit review has been agreed and finalised. 
Four reports fall into this category for the quarter, details of which are included in Appendix 
D.  

 
5.2 Based on the work carried out and finalised during the 2008 / 2009 (to 31 December 2008), 

the Chief Internal Auditor is of the opinion that the Council's internal control systems for those 
areas audited are generally sound. 100% of high / critical recommendations made to date 
have been accepted by management and programmed for implementation (against a target of 
96%).   

 
6. AUDIT PLAN 2008 / 2009 
 
6.1 Progress against Plan 
 
6.1.1 Appendix A shows all audits underway or completed in the first 9 months, with the exception 

of FMSiS follow up work and indicates the status of each activity. This includes reviews 
brought forward from the previous year that have been finalised during 2008/09. The actual 
days column shows the number days taken to complete an audit (from preparation to quality 
review and finalising the report) and includes time spent in 2007 / 2008. The planned days 
column shows how many days were budgeted for the audit (in either the 2007 / 2008 or the 
2008 / 2009 Annual Audit Plan) and the figure in brackets shows where that figure has been 
revised. A revision can occur due to a change in the scope or extent of the audit. Audits that 
were not planned at the time of the Annual Audit Plan are also included within the appendix, 
and identified as "unplanned work".  

 
6.1.2 Progress against the 2008 / 2009 plan is 63.7% (compared with 57.9% to the 9 month period 

April - December 2008). While the progress against the plan has improved compared to the 
previous year, the planned contingency time for unplanned reviews has now been utilised.  
This is due to the amount of requests for work, such as special investigations that have been 
made by management on the team, an example being where one review has taken in excess 
of 65 days. In view of this and that the needs of the organisation is continually changing the 
Audit Plan for the final quarter has been revised to best meet the demands of the business.  
Appendix E details the audit areas that have either been removed from the plan or will be 
rolled forward into 2009/10. 

 
6.1.3 To date, 35 audit projects for 2007 / 2008 have been finalised together with a further 56 for 

2008 / 2009. Six other pieces of work have been completed where either no audit report was 
necessary, or a committee report was produced. 
 

6.1.4 There are 53 audit projects in various stages of progress. Of these, 24 relate to the ongoing 
Financial Management of Schools reviews, which is an ongoing activity and are timetabled to 
be completed at the end of the year. 

 
6.2 Responses to Audit Reports  
 
6.2.1 Appendix B details the timeliness of responses for all audit projects that were finalised, or 

should have been finalised, during Quarter 3. 
 
6.2.2 Reminders continue to be produced as required to finalise reports in a timely manner.  
 
 

80



6.3 Status of Recommendations 
 
6.3.1 The table at Appendix C shows the status of those recommendations that have been made in 

all reports finalised to date in 2008 / 2009.   
 
6.3.2 Our current policy, as defined in our Audit Charter approved at Audit Committee on 6 

November 2006, is to follow up the implementation of recommendations 6 months after the 
reports have been finalised. To date 62.2% of high/critical recommendations have been 
followed up against an annual target of 65%. Where services receive an annual review, e.g. 
very high risk areas or key financial systems such as benefits and national non-domestic 
rates, recommendations are reassessed during this review. Refer to Appendix C for further 
information. 

 
6.4 Other Performance Matters  
 
6.4.1 Our productive time (chargeable days) target is 80%. Performance up to December 2008 is 

84%. This is above the anticipated target as a result of the additional resources provided by 
agency staff during Quarter 1 but has reduced since Quarter 2 due to the increase in sickness 
days detailed later in this report.   

 
6.4.2 Feedback for each audit is collected via Post Audit Questionnaires (PAQ). Our average score 

to date is 4.0 against a target of 3.75 (the highest score being 5), reflecting the high opinion 
our audit clients have of auditor conduct and the quality and usefulness of reports.   

 
6.4.3 An average of 8 days sickness per person was lost during the 9 months to 31 December 2008, 

compared to a target of 3.75 days.  This is a slight improvement on last year where sickness 
was 8.9 days per person as at 31 December 2007. However, sickness trends increased 
significantly during Quarter 3 due to the certificated absence of three members of staff for 
extended periods.  This has had a major impact on the delivery of the Audit Plan and will so for 
the remainder of the year, where it is known that sickness is to continue into Quarter 4 for one 
member of staff.  Where appropriate, sickness is being actively managed in accordance with 
the Council’s Attendance Policy and through Occupational Health if appropriate. 

 
6.4.4 An average of 5.53 days training has been provided to each auditor so far this year, compared 

to an annual target of not less than 5 days per auditor. This includes 'on the job' training, 
internal corporate training, training for professional qualifications and audit technical update 
seminars. Corporate initiatives introduced during the year in relation to the Learning Academy 
(Cohort 2010) and the Situation Leadership Programme, which Internal Audit are actively 
engaged in, will result in training exceeding the stated 5 days by the year end.    

 
6.4.5 The length of time from completion of field work to issue of a draft report is 15 days on 

average and is currently on line with a target of 15 days.  
 
7.  DEVELOPMENT OF FUTURE AUDIT PLANS 
 
7.1 Each year, the Chief Internal Auditor produces an annual audit plan, as required by The 

CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 (the Code). 
The plan is intended to demonstrate how Internal Audit will support the overall aims and 
objectives of the Council by providing the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and Audit 
Committee with an overall opinion each year on the Council’s control environment to support 
the Annual Governance Statement requirements. 

 
7.2 Traditionally, Internal Audit plans have been developed along departmental lines. While there 

is still merit in this, with assurance being required across more cross-cutting areas and key 
risks and themes, this conventional approach does not sit well. For example, it is not always 
apparent how each audit activity will provide assurance to AGS. As a rule while there is a 
intrinsic need to link the audits to key strategic risks, the majority of audits either originate from 

81



departmental risks or from a need to provide assurance elsewhere, for example to the Section 
151 officer. Departmental reviews will still remain, but these should be developed along risk 
lines linked in with the corporate / departmental contracts being developed. It must be 
reiterated that the onus on the identification and continuous assessment of risk rests with 
service / line managers and not Internal Audit who will test the adequacy of the risks. 

 
7.3 The Audit Plan was developed last year to closely link in with the Strategic Risk Register, 

ensuring that finite audit resources can be targeted in the key areas. This will continue in line 
with regular risk register refreshes by the Corporate Management Team.  

 
7.4 External Audit identified in their review of the effectiveness of internal audit (reported to Audit 

Committee 5 November 2007) that they considered that Internal Audit resources concentrated 
too much on central / fundamental systems - predominantly within Strategic Finance - and 
recommended a review of the time / effort spent in this area. The Audit Plan for 2008 / 2009 
showed a marked reduction in the time allocated, achieved by a greater emphasis on the risks 
rather than the controls within the system. This approach will continue to enable audit time to 
be utilised and allocated efficiently to the benefit of the organisation. 

 
7.5 As a result of the proposed changes, it is expected that future audit plans will be set out in line 

with Appendix F.  
 
7.6 The increased realignment to strategic risks and the associated increase in strategic based 

audits could have a number of implications. Firstly, there is a potential for a richer skills mix 
within the team due to the higher, more strategic issues being reviewed. Second, with an 
emphasis on risks rather than the controls, there is also a potential to reduce the overall 
number of days to be delivered to obtain the necessary assurance. 

 
8. CONSULTATION 
 

 This report and the accompanying appendices have been issued to the Section 151 Officer for 
consideration.  

 
9. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
 That the Audit Committee is informed of Internal Audit’s progress against the Annual Audit 

Plan and its business plan performance. In addition, that the Audit Committee is made aware 
of any key control issues highlighted by our work since the last progress report. 

 
10. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 The Council is subject to the Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2006 and, as 
such, must make provision for Internal Audit in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. It 
must also produce an Annual Statement of Internal Control to be published with the Council’s 
financial accounts. This report along with the attached appendices demonstrate how the audit 
service is progressing against the audit plan how it will contribute to the Statement. 

 
11.   ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
The alternative of not providing an Internal Audit service is not an option. 

 
12. IMPLICATIONS 
 

12.1 Corporate Strategy (relevance to):  
 
 Internal Audit, through its central monitoring role, has an essential part to play in the 

application of sound financial management and corporate governance principles throughout 
the organisation. In addition it endeavours to promote quality systems and to ensure that there 
is an effective, efficient and economical use of all resources available to the Council.  

82



 
 Internal Audit reviews the risk management process that is integral in the setting of priorities 

within the Council and ultimately the Corporate Strategy. A corporate risk management 
process is now in place and work continues to be undertaken to embed further a risk 
management culture throughout the Council. Corporate risk registers were first introduced in 
October 2003 and these are continuing to evolve as is the nature of effective risk 
management. These registers should reflect the risks associated with the key priorities 
identified in the Corporate Strategy. The Internal Audit plan for 2008 / 2009 has been 
produced with reference to the Corporate Risk Register to ensure, where possible and 
appropriate, Internal Audit review those areas considered to be of the most significant risk. 
The annual audit plan will continue to be reviewed to ensure it is in line with the risk registers, 
and as a consequence that the audit programme is closely linked to the Corporate Strategy.  

 
 There would be a legal implication if an Internal Audit service was not provided for, and if 

mechanisms were not in place to carry out a review of internal control, governance and risk 
management as a basis for the Annual Governance Statement.  

 
13. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

  

 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 
 Accounts and Audit (amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 
 Internal Audit Business Plan 2008 / 2009 
 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2008 / 2009 

 
APPENDICES:  
 
Appendix A 
 

Progress of Audit Plan 2008 / 2009: To 31 December 2008 

Appendix B 
 

Responses to Audit Reports 

Appendix C 
 

Status of Recommendations 

Appendix D Audit Reports Issued in Quarter 3 with Limited / No Assurance 
 

Appendix E Audit Plan 2008/09 Revisions 
 

Appendix F Development of Future Audit Plans 
 

 

83



84

This page is intentionally left blank



Progress of 2008/ 2009 Audit Plan: To 31 December 2008    APPENDIX A 
 

Audit Assignment  
Original 

(Revised) 
Planned Days  

Actual Days  Stage / Comment  

 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

PPCT Corporate Governance 10 (18) 19.5 Final report issued 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVES DEPARTMENT 

Greater Dogsthorpe Partnership 15(26) 31 Fieldwork completed 

Investing in Communities (08/09)  
14 

unplanned 
9 Fieldwork in progress  

Local Area Agreements (2007/8) 10 10.5 Final memo issued 

SI. Chief Executive’s no.1 (Str5310-01 
1.5 (2) 

 unplanned 
2 Final memo issued 

Section 106 Follow up 3.0 3.0 Final memo issued 

Members Allowances  
10 

Unplanned 
9 Final memo issued 

SI. Chief Executive’s no.2 (Cex1063-02) 
15(70)  

unplanned 
69 Draft review stage 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

Section 106 Agreements 15 (30) 30.5 Final report issued 

British Sugar S106 Agreement 
10 

unplanned 
8.5 Final report Issued 

 
 
 

CHILDRENS SERVICES 

Schools – FMSiS Arrangements (25 schools 
including one re-assessment) 

193 (201.5) 168 
One school has been 
completed. All others in 
progress. 

Caverstede Early Years Centre FMSiS & Follow Up 7 4.0 Final memo issued. 

Schools – FMSiS 07/08 schools follow up 46 14.5 

23 schools to be followed up 
during 2008/09. 12 follow 
ups are complete with the 
remainder underway 

Fostering & Adoption 10 8 Final report issued 

S.I. Children’s Services no.1 (Chi2082-04) 
3 (13.5) 

unplanned 
14.5 Final report issued 

S.I. Children’s Services no.2 (Chi2340-02) 
13 (22) 

unplanned 
25.5 Final report issued 

Schools – Remuneration Committee review  
1 

unplanned 
1.5 Work completed 

S.I. Children’s Services no.3 (Chi2410-03) 
3(8) 

 unplanned 
9 Final report t to be issued 

 

85



Progress of 2008/ 2009 Audit Plan: To 31 December 2008    APPENDIX A 
 

Audit Assignment  
Original 

(Revised) 
Planned Days  

Actual Days  Stage / Comment  

 
 

CHILDRENS SERVICES (continued) 

SI Children’s Services no.7 (Chi2083-05) 11 11.5 Final Issued 

S.I Children’ Services no. 9 (Chi2320-01) 15 13.5 Final memo issued 

S.I. Children’s Services no.4 (Chi2108-03) 
1 (10) 

 unplanned 
3 Work completed 

S.I. Children’s Services no.8 (Chi2310-02) 
2(3.5) 

unplanned 
4.5 Final memo issued 

PCAE follow up 2 (4) 4 
Final letter about to be 
issued 

Section 52 Outturn Statement 0.5 1 Final memo issued 

Youth Offenders Service – Cancellation of Events 
1 

 unplanned 
1 Final memo issued 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

School FMSiS Arrangements: 17 schools rolled 
forward to 2008/9.  

136 (171.5) 173 

Final Reports issued for all 
over-running 07/08 schools 
(figures include only over-
running schools).  

SureStart Follow-up 2 2 Final memo issued. 

Education Psychology 8 7 Final memo issued 

SI Children’s Services no.5 (Chi2450-01) 
10 (20) 

unplanned 
20 Final report  to be issued 

School Closure follow up 2 2 Final memo issued 

SI Children’s Services no.6 (Chi2340-01) 
17 

 unplanned 
17.5 Final memo issued 

Home to School Transport  10 7 Final memo issued 

 

CITY SERVICES 

Budgetary Control – City Services.   10 10.5 Draft report issued 

86



Progress of 2008/ 2009 Audit Plan: To 31 December 2008    APPENDIX A 
 

Audit Assignment  
Original 

(Revised) 
Planned Days  

Actual Days  Stage / Comment  

 
 

STRATEGIC RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Cards 15(21) 21 Draft report issued 

Teachers’ Pension Returns 07/08 25 (29) 33.5 Five final reports – all issued 

Budgetary Control (Revenue) – Children’s Services 15(18) 18.5 Draft report issued 

Purchase to Pay 08/09  10 2 Fieldwork in progress.  

STRATEGIC RESOURCES DEPARTMENT (continued) 

Business Change Programmes  25 22.5 Completed 

Control Advice (Cheque Handling) 2 2 Final memo issued 

S.I. Strategic Resources no.2 (Str5355-05) 
3(7) 

unplanned 
7 At review stage 

S.I. Strategic Resources no.1 (Str5355-04) 
1 

unplanned 
1 Final memo issued 

Cash & Banking 15  15 At review stage 

CRB policy for schools 
5 

Unplanned 
4 At review stage 

S.I. Strategic Resources no.3 (Str5240-03) 1 1 Final memo issued 

Bus Service Operator’s Grant 1 (3) 3 Final memo issued 

S.I. Strategic Resources no.4 (Str5310-01) 
1.5(2) 

unplanned 
2 Final memo issued 

Debtors (Invoice to Cash & Invoice Billing) 8 7.5 Fieldwork in progress 

Performance Management 15 2 Fieldwork in progress 

Capital Projects Gateway Processes 10 2 Fieldwork in progress 

Change in VAT rate 
0.5(3) 

unplanned 
3 Final memo issued 

S.I. Strategic Resources no.5 (Str5470-16) 
1 

unplanned 
1 Final memo issued 

87



Progress of 2008/ 2009 Audit Plan: To 31 December 2008    APPENDIX A 
 

Audit Assignment  
Original 

(Revised) 
Planned Days  

Actual Days  Stage / Comment  

 
 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

Housing & Council Tax Benefits  10 (28) 29.5 Final report issued 

Risk Management 6 (13) 12 Final report issued 

Debtors (Invoice to Cash & Invoice Billing) 10 (24) 24 Final report issued 

Payroll 5 6 Final report issued 

Treasury Management 5 (7) 8 Final report issued 

Financial Accounting 10 (15) 14.5 Final report issued 

Council Tax 10 (25) 25 Final report issued 

National Non-Domestic Rates 10 (29) 30.5 Final report issued 

Fixed Asset Accounting 10 (17) 21 Draft report issued 

 

 IT AUDIT 

PCI Standards follow up 2 0.5 Fieldwork in progress 

Disaster Recovery & Business Continuity follow up 3 0.5 Fieldwork in progress 

Physical Access & Environmental Controls follow up 3 0 
Follow up about to 
commence 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

PCI Standards 8 10.5 Finalised 

ICT Disaster Recovery & Business Continuity 9 11.5 Finalised 

ICT Physical Access & Environmental Controls 8 7.5 Finalised 

Follow up of three 06/07 ICT audits (Network 
Management, Internet, and CQA) 

8 9.5 Final memo issued 

 

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

SEN Transport 6 5.5 Final report issued 

CIF Grant Certification 
8 (9) 

unplanned 
8.5 Completed 

Stage 3 Complaint 
10 

unplanned 
7 Fieldwork in progress 

Street Lighting 10 8.5 Draft report issued 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

Central Library 10 (33) 35 Final report issued 

Museum 8 (23) 24.5 Final report issued 

88



Progress of 2008/ 2009 Audit Plan: To 31 December 2008    APPENDIX A 
 

Audit Assignment  
Original 

(Revised) 
Planned Days  

Actual Days  Stage / Comment  

 
 

CONTRACT AUDITS    

Professional Services Partnership 5 1 In Planning 

Schools’ Broadband Contract 4 1.5 In Planning 

Award of SEN Transport Routes 3 0.5 In Planning 

Eastern Regional Term Maintenance Framework 
Contract 

3 1 In Planning 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

Measure Term Contracts 6 (20) 20.5 
Draft report about to be 
issued 

 
 

CORPORATE / CROSS CUTTING / OTHER 

Imprest Arrangements 15(21) 20 
Final report about to be 
issued 

Annual Governance Statement 15(21) 21 Final report issued 

Corporate Governance – Partnership Toolkit 
Development   

12  
unplanned 

8  In planning 

Fees and Charges (CIA Consultancy) 
2 

unplanned 
1.5 Final memo issued 

CIPFA Benchmarking 8 8 Completed 

Business Continuity 15 12 Completed 

CMDN – National ID Scheme (CIA Consultancy) 10 5 Final memo issued 

UoR / KLOE 15 8 Fieldwork in progress 

Business Transformation (Service Planning) 
10 

unplanned 
5.5 Consultancy work ongoing 

 

EXTERNAL ACTIVITIES    

LPSA2 Grant 5 12 Fieldwork in progress 

GAF Grant Claim 6 5.5 Final memo issued 

Rolled forward from 2007/8 

Grants Management 5(15) 12 At review stage.  

 

89



90

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 

M
A

D
E

 
N

O
T

 A
G

R
E

E
D

 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

A
S

S
IS

T
A

N
T

 C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 

In
ve

st
in

g 
in

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 

26
-J

un
-0

8 
23

-J
ul

-0
8 

03
-N

ov
-0

8 
5 

 0
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 0
2 

F
eb

 2
00

9 

B
rit

is
h 

S
ug

ar
 S

10
6 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 
28

-F
eb

-0
8 

- 
18

-A
pr

-0
8 

16
 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

fin
al

is
ed

 3
0-

D
ec

-0
8 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t: 
G

ra
nt

 2
00

7/
20

08
 

N
/A

 
- 

25
-J

un
-0

8 
0 

0 
F

U
L

L
 

 

 

A
D

U
L

T
 S

O
C

IA
L

 C
A

R
E

 (
P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 C

A
R

E
 T

R
U

S
T

) 

P
P

C
T

 C
or

po
ra

te
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
26

-J
un

-0
8 

07
-J

ul
-0

8 
 

16
-O

ct
-0

8 
3 

 0
 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

   

91



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

   
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
D

E
 

N
O

T
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
 

W
er

rin
gt

on
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

24
-J

an
-0

8 
7-

M
ar

-0
8 

25
-M

ar
-0

8 
 

18
-A

pr
-0

8 
8 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

fin
al

is
ed

 1
7-

O
ct

-0
8 

S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ju
ni

or
 F

M
S

iS
 

17
-A

pr
-0

8 
16

-M
ay

-0
8 

9-
Ju

n-
08

 
 

23
-J

un
-0

8 
11

 
1 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
F

in
al

is
ed

 w
ith

ou
t r

es
po

ns
e.

 U
ns

ol
ic

ite
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 
up

da
te

 o
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 la
te

r 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

F
in

al
is

ed
 1

0-
D

ec
-0

8.
 

 

T
ho

rp
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

F
M

S
iS

 
4-

M
ar

-0
8 

 -
  

16
-A

pr
-0

8 
8 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

fin
al

is
ed

 2
7-

N
ov

-0
8 

G
la

ds
to

ne
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

8-
A

pr
-0

8 
8-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
4-

Ju
l-0

8 
13

 
0 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 1

 S
ep

t 2
00

8 
F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
Q

4.
 

 

F
ul

br
id

ge
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

4-
M

ar
-0

8 
 -

  
29

-A
pr

-0
8 

9 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
fin

al
is

ed
 1

7.
10

.0
8 

E
ye

 C
 o

f E
  P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

8-
A

pr
-0

8 
2-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
14

-M
ay

-0
8 

12
 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

Q
ue

en
's

 D
riv

e 
In

fa
nt

s 
F

M
S

iS
 

8-
A

pr
-0

8 
2-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
7-

M
ay

-0
8 

10
 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

W
ill

ia
m

 L
aw

 C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

14
-M

ar
-0

8 
 -

  
7-

A
pr

-0
8 

7 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
fin

al
is

ed
 1

5-
O

ct
-0

8 

B
re

w
st

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
In

fa
nt

s 
F

M
S

iS
 

9-
A

pr
-0

8 
2-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
7-

M
ay

-0
8 

4 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

W
el

la
nd

 P
rim

ar
y 

F
M

S
IS

 
8-

A
pr

-0
8 

2-
M

ay
-0

8 
30

-M
ay

-0
8 

 

4-
Ju

n-
08

 
11

 
0 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 1

 S
ep

t 2
00

8 

G
un

th
or

pe
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

8-
A

pr
-0

8 
 -

  
30

-A
pr

-0
8 

3 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
fin

al
is

ed
 2

7-
N

ov
-0

8 

R
av

en
st

ho
rp

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

8-
A

pr
-0

8 
2-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
13

-M
ay

-0
8 

5 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

B
ra

yb
ro

ok
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

14
-A

pr
-0

8 
8-

M
ay

-0
8 

 
9-

M
ay

-0
8 

5 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

M
at

le
y 

P
rim

ar
y 

F
M

S
iS

 
21

-A
pr

-0
8 

14
-M

ay
-0

8 
 

28
-M

ay
-0

8 
3 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

S
t B

ot
ol

ph
's

 C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
F

M
S

iS
 

1-
M

ay
-0

8 
 -

  
28

-M
ay

-0
8 

8 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

92



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

   
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
D

E
 

N
O

T
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
 

Le
ig

ht
on

 P
rim

ar
y 

F
M

S
iS

 
9-

M
ay

-0
8 

9-
Ju

n-
08

 
 

1-
Ju

l-0
8 

10
 

0 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 C

om
m

itt
ee

: 1
 S

ep
t 2

00
8 

 

P
as

to
n 

R
id

in
gs

 F
M

S
iS

 
13

-M
ay

-0
8 

9-
Ju

n-
08

 
 

26
-J

un
-0

8 
3 

0 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 C

om
m

itt
ee

: 1
 S

ep
t 2

00
8 

 

C
av

er
st

ed
e 

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 C
en

tr
e:

 F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

- 
- 

24
-J

ul
-0

8 
1 

0 
N

o
 r

at
in

g
 

O
nl

y 
on

e 
lo

w
 p

rio
rit

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n.
 

 

S
t J

oh
n 

F
is

he
r:

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

/ F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

23
-S

ep
-0

8 
16

-O
ct

-0
8 

4-
N

ov
-0

8 
 

- 
14

 
 

N
O

N
E

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

re
sp

on
se

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 ti

m
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 fo
r 

re
sp

on
se

 d
ue

 to
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

. 
 

E
yr

es
cr

of
t F

M
S

iS
 

 
14

-N
ov

-0
8 

 
10

-D
ec

-0
8 

9 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
F

irs
t o

f t
he

 0
8/

09
 s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 p
as

s 
F

M
S

iS
 

O
T

H
E

R
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

 
 

O
rt

on
 L

on
gu

ev
ill

e:
 C

as
hl

es
s 

S
ys

te
m

 
17

-J
ul

-0
8 

-  
18

-A
ug

-0
8 

11
 

0 
N

O
N

E
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 3

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

08
 

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

 
 

S
ur

es
ta

rt
 F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
 

15
-A

pr
-0

8 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 C

om
m

itt
ee

: 1
 S

ep
t 2

00
8 

H
om

e 
to

 S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
6-

D
ec

-0
7 

 -
  

2-
A

pr
-0

8 
7 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

E
du

ca
tio

na
l P

sy
ch

ol
og

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 

2-
A

pr
-0

8 
 6

-M
ay

-0
8 

29
-J

ul
-0

8 
 

30
-J

ul
-0

8 
 

3 
 0

 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

S
I C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

no
.2

 (
C

hi
23

40
-0

2)
 

 
26

-S
ep

-0
8 

23
-O

ct
-0

8 
 

17
-N

ov
-0

8 
23

 
0 

N
O

N
E

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

 

F
os

te
r 

C
ar

e 
O

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 
25

-S
ep

-0
8 

21
-O

ct
-0

8 
 

- 
2 

 
F

U
L

L
 

T
o 

be
 fi

na
lis

ed
 

P
riv

at
e 

F
os

te
rin

g 
- 

- 
- 

0 
 

N
o

 r
at

in
g

 
g

iv
en

 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 fo
rm

 a
 v

ie
w

. T
o 

be
 

re
-a

ud
ite

d 
in

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

tim
e 

 

 

93



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

  
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
D

E
 

N
O

T
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

 
C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
 

In
vo

ic
e 

F
ra

ud
 

9-
Ju

l-0
8 

03
-S

ep
-0

8 
08

-S
ep

-0
8 

15
-S

ep
-0

8 
 

- 
20

 
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
es

po
ns

es
 n

ow
 r

ec
ei

ve
d,

 fi
na

l t
o 

be
 is

su
ed

. 
 

P
C

A
E

 fo
llo

w
 u

p 
to

 0
7/

08
 r

ep
or

t 
- 

3-
Ju

l-0
8 

 
- 

- 
N

o
 r

at
in

g
 

g
iv

en
 

F
in

al
is

at
io

n 
de

fe
rr

ed
 u

nt
il 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 C

hi
24

10
-0

3 
 

S
I C

hi
24

10
-0

3 
27

-N
ov

-0
8 

- 
 

8 
0 

N
O

N
E

 
F

in
al

 r
ep

or
t a

bo
ut

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 

B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 C

on
tr

ol
 (

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

 
16

-O
ct

-0
8 

- 
 

 
 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

re
sp

on
se

 

S
.I.

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
no

.2
 (

C
hi

23
40

-0
2)

 
31

-O
ct

-0
8 

- 
7-

N
ov

-0
8 

8 
0 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 2
 F

eb
 2

00
9 

94



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

   
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
D

E
 

N
O

T
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

C
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 C

on
tr

ol
 (

C
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

 
9-

O
ct

-0
8 

- 
 

12
 

- 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
P

ar
tia

l r
es

po
ns

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
. A

 fu
rt

he
r 

re
m

in
de

r 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
. 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

M
us

eu
m

 
25

-M
ar

-0
8 

8-
M

ay
-0

8 
12

-J
un

-0
8 

27
 

1 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

O
ne

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

re
je

ct
ed

 (
ob

so
le

te
 d

ue
 to

 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
ch

an
ge

 in
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s)
 

 

C
en

tr
al

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

18
-S

ep
-0

8 
- 

6-
N

ov
-0

8 
16

 
16

 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

S
E

N
: T

ra
ns

po
rt

 T
en

de
r 

 
30

-J
un

-0
8 

- 
2-

Ju
l-0

8 
5 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

 
15

-O
ct

-0
8 

- 
 

7 
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

M
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 fi
na

lis
at

io
n 

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

M
A

IN
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 / 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 B

en
ef

its
 

27
-J

un
-0

8 
7-

A
ug

-0
8 

9-
S

ep
-0

8 
9 

3 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

A
ll 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 r
at

ed
 lo

w
. 2

 w
ith

dr
aw

n 
du

e 
to

 
an

 e
rr

or
 in

 th
e 

ob
se

rv
at

io
n 

 

In
vo

ic
e 

to
 C

as
h 

/ I
nv

oi
ce

 B
ill

in
g 

10
-A

pr
-0

8 
- 

16
-M

ay
-0

8 
18

 
1 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
O

ne
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
re

je
ct

ed
. A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
so

lu
tio

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

y 
cl

ie
nt

. 
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

9-
M

ay
-0

8 
- 

10
-J

un
-0

8 
5 

0 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 C

om
m

itt
ee

: 1
 S

ep
t 2

00
8 

 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 
16

-J
ul

-0
8 

7-
A

ug
-0

8 
27

-A
ug

-0
8 

9 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 

 

 

N
N

D
R

 
 

27
-A

ug
-0

8 
- 

26
-N

ov
-0

8 
12

 
3 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 d
ra

ft 
re

ce
iv

ed
 3

-O
ct

-0
8 

ho
w

ev
er

 s
om

e 
re

sp
on

se
 q

ue
rie

d.
 1

 M
ed

iu
m

 &
 2

 L
ow

 p
rio

rit
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 r
ej

ec
te

d.
  

P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

C
ar

ds
 

 
16

-O
ct

-0
8 

- 
 

17
 

 
N

O
N

E
 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 h
el

d,
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

re
sp

on
se

 

B
an

k 
Im

pr
es

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
 

15
-O

ct
-0

8 
20

-N
ov

-0
8 

 
19

 
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

M
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

. R
ep

or
t i

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 b
ei

ng
 fi

na
lis

ed
. 

95



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

  
D

A
T

E
S

 
N

o
. O

F
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 / 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 

D
R

A
F

T
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

R
E

M
IN

D
E

R
 

IS
S

U
E

D
 

F
IN

A
L

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
D

E
 

N
O

T
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

A
U

D
IT

 
O

P
IN

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 

O
T

H
E

R
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 
 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
8-

M
ay

-0
8 

- 
20

-M
ay

-0
8 

10
 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

 

T
re

as
ur

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
23

-M
ay

-0
8 

 
- 

10
-J

ul
-0

8 
4 

0 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
2-

Ju
n-

08
 

- 
11

-J
ul

-0
8 

7 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
  

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s:

 L
on

gt
ho

rp
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

 
16

-S
ep

-0
8 

- 
19

-D
ec

-0
8 

2 
0 

S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s:

 N
en

e 
V

al
le

y 
P

rim
ar

y 
 

 
8-

S
ep

-0
8 

- 
24

-S
ep

-0
8 

3 
0 

F
U

L
L

 
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s:

 (
C

hi
54

70
-1

1)
 

 
16

-S
ep

-0
8 

- 
13

-O
ct

-0
8 

4 
0 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 2
 F

eb
 2

00
9 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s:

 B
us

hf
ie

ld
 C

ol
le

ge
 

 
11

-S
ep

-0
8 

- 
17

-S
ep

-0
8 

1 
0 

F
U

L
L

 / 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 

F
ul

l a
ss

ur
an

ce
 w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 h

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 h
ow

ev
er

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
op

in
io

n 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
is

su
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s:

 P
C

C
 P

ay
ro

ll 
 

24
-S

ep
-0

8 
- 

24
-O

ct
-0

8 
2 

0 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 2

 F
eb

 2
00

9 

IT
 A

U
D

IT
 

 

P
C

I S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

22
-A

pr
-0

8 
10

-J
un

-0
8 

7-
Ju

l-0
8 

21
-J

ul
-0

8 
 

 2
2-

Ju
l-0

8 
7 

 0
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 1

 S
ep

t 2
00

8 

IC
T

 P
hy

si
ca

l A
cc

es
s 

&
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

C
on

tr
ol

s 
22

-A
pr

-0
8 

10
-J

un
-0

8 
7-

Ju
l-0

8 
21

-J
ul

-0
8 

 

 2
2-

Ju
l-0

8 
35

 
 0

 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

N
O

N
E

 

F
ou

r 
se

rv
er

 r
oo

m
s 

w
er

e 
gi

ve
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 
1 

se
rv

er
 r

oo
m

 w
as

 g
iv

en
 a

 n
o 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
ra

tin
g 

 R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 1

 S
ep

t 2
00

8 
 

IC
T

 D
is

as
te

r 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

&
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 

22
-A

pr
-0

8 
10

-J
un

-0
8 

7-
Ju

l-0
8 

21
-J

ul
-0

8 
 

 2
2-

Ju
l-0

8 
11

 
 0

 
N

O
N

E
 

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
: 1

 S
ep

t 2
00

8 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
 

N
o 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 d
at

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

96



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
S
: 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
 /
 2
0
0
9
 

  

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS STATUS 
 
Status of Recommendations made in 2008 / 2009 
 

 
 
 

9 months 
April 2008 to December 2008 

 
 

Total  Critical  High 
Medium /  

Low 

Total number of 
recommendations made 
 

416 (100.0%) 7 (1.7%) 94 (22.6%) 315 (75.7%) 

Recommendations awaiting 
Management response 
 

107 (25.7%) 2 (28.6%) 30 (31.9%) 75 (23.8%) 

Recommendations agreed 
 

303 (72.8%) 5 (71.4%) 64 (68.1%) 234 (74.3%) 

Recommendation not yet 
followed-up / date for action 
not yet expired 
 

205 (67.6%) 5 (71.4%) 48 (75.0%) 152 (65.0%) 

No work started on 
recommendation 
 

- - - - - - - - 

In progress  
 

76 (25.1%) - - 13 (20.3%) 63 (26.9%) 

Fully implemented  
 

- - - - - - - - 

Recommendation due to be 
followed up within annual 
review 

22 (7.3%) - - 3 (4.7%) 19 (8.1%) 

Recommendation 
superseded 
 

- - - - - - - - 

Recommendation rejected 
 

6 (1.5%) - - - - 6 (1.9%) 

 

99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D 

 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED 2008 / 2009 WITH LIMITED OR NO ASSURANCE 
 
 

Reports issued during Quarter 3 (October - December 2008) 
 

 
1 

 
S.I. Children’s Services no.2 (Chi2340-02) 

  
2 
 
3 
 
4 

Teachers Pensions Returns (Chi5470-11) 
 
Teachers Pensions Annual Report 
 
Investors In Communities 

  

 
 

101



APPENDIX D 

 

REPORT 1: S.I. Children’s Services no.2 (Chi2340-02) 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Prior to recent events no asset register had been maintained at the Centre. At that time this was in 
breach of the requirements of Financial Regulations. Having been made aware of the specific 
allegations made, the Service Manager took immediate action to set-up a register and associated 
guidelines which addressed the above shortcomings. The importance of asset management is 
essential, not only as a fundamental internal control process, but also as a safeguard for both the 
Council and officers to counter against any allegations of malpractice as has been the case in this 
instance. 
 
During a check of the adequacy of the number of careworkers on duty during AM and PM shifts, it was 
confirmed that sometimes staff on sick leave are included in the definitive list of those working.  This 
means that it is not possible to rely on management information produced from this data, as the data 
itself might be inaccurate and in some cases, incomplete. 
 
There are no daily shift sheets for waking night shift staff.  The record supplied was a summary of the 
staff that were on duty each night and this provided insufficient detail for an analysis to be made. 
 
A sample check carried out on the calendar month of May 2008 revealed that on 8 occasions, the 
number of careworking staff on duty during AM shifts was less than the minimum level agreed locally 
with OFSTED, with 5 of these occurring during the half term week when the education staff would not 
have been on the premises. On 5 occasions the PM shifts were also understaffed (although 3 of these 
were only deficient by one hour).  However, the ratio of permanent to agency staff was not breached 
during this period. 
 
No evidence was found of inappropriate staff (e.g. administration staff) being used to remedy a 
shortage of careworking staff. 
 
A small minority of staff worked excessive hours during the sample period and as timekeeping records 
are not maintained by residential workers, it is not readily clear when they are working overtime.  Due 
to this lack of adequate record keeping, it is also difficult to monitor if working time regulations are 
being breached. 
 
According to the records provided, the vast majority of careworkers have received CALM physical 
restraint training, including all the waking night staff, but further work will be needed to gain assurance 
that these records are accurate and complete. 
 
 

Scope & Objectives 
 
Internal Audit was requested by the Assistant Director, Families and Communities, to undertake a 
review of specific management and procedural issues at the centre following a series of whistle 
blowing allegations that had been made by a number of staff.  Subsequently, to report to management 
any concerns with regard to control shortcomings or non-compliance with Peterborough City Council 
policies that are identified during the course of the review. 

 
The objectives were to determine the procedures and controls in place with regard to asset security, 
procurement, asset disposal, duty rotas / timesheets, staff restraint training. 

 
 

Methodology 
 

Initial discussions were held with the Service Manager in order to obtain background information in 
relation to the areas that were to be reviewed.  Computer and manual records were examined relating 
to the scope detailed above.  Where appropriate, IDEA was used for the interrogation of data. 
 

102



APPENDIX D 

 
 

Conclusion 
 

This review has highlighted a number of major weaknesses that must be urgently addressed, in both 
the financial and staffing areas of this investigation. 
 

The previous lack of an asset register and the practices adopted by the Service Manager with regard 
to asset disposals make it difficult to substantiate the allegations that have been made. The need for 
management to maintain appropriate records and implement transparent procedures that do not leave 
themselves, or their staff, open to allegations of malpractice is of paramount importance. 
 

Evidence has been found that substantiates the allegation that staffing level figures have sometimes 
been inaccurate by including staff on sick leave, although this only led to understaffing on a few 
occasions.  Time constraints precluded interviewing members of staff and checking agency invoices to 
discover if all the shifts credited to individuals are correct.  However, any breaches in agreed staffing 
levels could have serious repercussions, bearing in mind the vulnerability of the residents. 
 

Audit Opinion 
 

This audit was conducted in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government that requires compliance with relevant auditing standards.  The audit was planned and 
performed so as to obtain all relevant information and sufficient evidence to express an opinion. 
 

The audit opinion is No Assurance in the specific areas reviewed.   
 
 
 

103



APPENDIX D 

 

Report 2: Teachers Pensions Returns (Chi5470-11) 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The school’s external payroll provider, Capita, administer teachers’ pensions on behalf of the school.  
Agreed actions from the Internal Audit Teachers’ Pensions Report 2007 have not been implemented 
and are detailed within this report.  There are checking processes within the school to ensure the 
payroll service is satisfactory.  However, these are not evidenced appropriately.   
 

Scope & Objectives 
 
The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance to PriceWaterhouseCoopers that there are 
appropriate controls in place for the administration of Teachers’ Pensions returns to support the review 
of the grant claim. 

 
The areas covered were compilation of the payroll, payroll control environment and degree of risk 
attached to the data provided for the return. 
 

Methodology 
 
Payroll and pensions records were reviewed for 2007/08 to ensure compliance with Teachers’ 
Pensions regulations.  In addition, the previous Teachers Pensions internal audit report, issued in 
October 2007, was followed up. 
 

Conclusion 
 
There are satisfactory controls in place at the school for the administration of teachers’ pensions.  
However, improvements to the payroll processes can be made as detailed. 
 

Audit Opinion 
 
This audit was conducted in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government that requires compliance with relevant auditing standards.  The audit was planned and 
performed so as to obtain all relevant information and sufficient evidence to express an opinion. 
 

The audit opinion is Limited Assurance because recommendations remain outstanding from the 2007 
Internal Audit review.   
 

104



APPENDIX D 

 

Report 3: Teachers Pensions Returns – Annual Report 

 

Executive Summary 
 
An annual Teachers’ Pension review has been undertaken on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(PwC) in accordance with the Audit Commission’s Certification Instruction. Peterborough City Council’s 
(PCC) role in this is to administer the scheme in relation to those schools it provides payroll services, 
collate external providers’ data, and complete then submit form TR17. 
 
Examination of the TR17 and related payroll records has highlighted inaccurate deductions in relation 
to two supply teachers where PCC provides payroll services. Therefore the TR17 return total 
pensionable pay is understated and there is a shortfall in contributions made totalling £244.11. 
 
 

Scope & Objectives 
 
The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance to PricewaterhouseCoopers that 

• There are appropriate controls in place for the administration of Teachers’ Pensions returns to 
support the review of the grant claim. 

• Confirm the figures contained within the TR17 are accurate, and are ready for submission to 
the external auditor 

• Confirm that appropriate paperwork is maintained to support teachers’ pension arrangements.. 
 

 

Methodology 
 
Discussions were held with appropriate PCC HR staff along with the review of manual and 
computerised documentation. 
 
 

Conclusion 
 
There are no problems with the compilation of the TR17. Figures are obtained, collated and entered 
accurately. However data provided to Teachers Pensions on the TR17 return is inaccurate. Errors 
found in relation to the exclusion of two supply teachers from the Teachers’ Pensions Scheme (TPS), 
who should have been included in the scheme, have resulted in a shortfall in contributions. This may 
lead to the external auditor issuing a qualification letter when certifying the TR17. 
 
 

Audit Opinion 
 
This audit was conducted in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government that requires compliance with relevant auditing standards. The audit was planned and 
performed so as to obtain all relevant information and sufficient evidence to express an opinion. 
 

The audit opinion is Limited Assurance.  
 

105



APPENDIX D 

 

Report 4: Investors In Communities 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Investing in Communities (IiC) is an East of England Development Agency (EEDA) programme aiming 
to work with public, private and voluntary and community sector partners to drive sustainable economic 
development and reduce disadvantage and deprivation in the East of England.  IiC is based on the 
principle that partners develop a shared understanding of the issues facing the most deprived 
communities and the priorities for action.  Based on this understanding EEDA will contribute to a 
limited number of major interventions alongside partners.  As an economic development agency IiC’s 
key priorities are employment, skills and enterprise. 
 
Peterborough City Council (PCC) acts as the accountable body for the IiC programme and through its 
management of the programme have established an IiC Board, with governance arrangements 
delivered via the Peterborough Regional Economic Partnership (PREP), to lead the development and 
delivery of the programme.  
 
The Board has, in turn, secured wider partnership engagement through the establishment of three 
thematic advisory groups to lead developments under the key priority areas of employment, enterprise 
and skills. In addition, the programme has established strong relationships with the Greater 
Peterborough Partnership (GPP), and the Local Area Agreement (LAA) management group. 
 
In February 2007 the EEDA Board approved, subject to conditions, the PREP IiC Business Plan for 
2007-11 including investment of £11.5 million. 
 
In response to conditions applied by EEDA in approving the 2007-11 Business Plan, PCC Strategic 
Growth & Development recognised that the governance arrangements in place to monitor the four 
projects operating during 2006-07 would be insufficient when managing a larger programme.  A paper 
was taken to the IiC Board on 3 April 2007 to approve the new reporting structure for IiC.  This has 
clarified the link between the IiC Board, the PREP Board and PCC. However, because of the IiC 
section was not fully staffed and experienced staff turnover during 2007, this process is only now 
becoming bedded-in. 
 
 

Scope & Objectives 

 
The objectives of the audit were to ensure that appropriate governance arrangements have been 
established for the IiC program, that funds are appropriately accounted for, that performance 
standards are met and that PCC fulfils its’ role as the accountable body. 
External auditors have historically considered the governance arrangements of the partnership  as 
weak, with reliance being placed on the controls within the accountable body – PCC.  
 
 

Methodology 
 
Our approach was to examine the adoption of policies and procedures; standards for business 
conduct; register of interests; accountability, operation of the board and reporting through review of 
relevant documentation and discussion with PCC-IiC staff. 

106



APPENDIX D 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
The IiC Board should independently assess the current governance arrangements in place, and where 
existing PCC policies and procedures are considered relevant these should be formally adopted by the 
Board.  Where additional policies and procedures are considered necessary these should be 
developed and approved by the Board at the earliest opportunity. 
 
A risk register should be developed and approved by the IiC Board and should be subject to periodic 
review by the Board.  
 
An Operations Manual for IiC Board members and staff outlining protocol and procedures for all 
aspects of IiC operation, including the ongoing review of its policies and procedures, should be 
developed. 
 
 

Audit Opinion 
 
This audit was conducted in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government that requires compliance with relevant auditing standards.  The audit was planned and 
performed so as to obtain all relevant information and sufficient evidence to express an opinion. 
 

The audit opinion is Limited Assurance. 
 

107



APPENDIX D 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION GRADES 

 

CRITICAL 

 

Extreme control weakness that jeopardises the complete operation of the 
service. 

TO BE IMPLEMENTED IMMEDIATELY 

 

HIGH Fundamental control weakness which significantly increases the risk / scope 
for error, fraud, or loss of efficiency. 

To be implemented as a matter of priority 

 

MEDIUM Significant control weakness which reduces the effectiveness of procedures 
designed to protect assets and revenue of the Authority. 

To be implemented at 

 the first opportunity 

 

LOW Control weakness, which, if corrected, will enhance control procedures that are 
already relatively robust. 

To be implemented as soon as reasonably practical 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT OPINIONS 

 

 

OPINION 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

GUIDE FOR AWARDING 

 

FULL 

assurance 

 

 
The system is designed to meet objectives and 
controls are consistently applied that protect the 
Authority from foreseeable risks. 
 

 

A limited number of LOW 
recommendations. 

 

SIGNIFICANT 

assurance 

 
The system is generally sound but there are 
some weaknesses of the design of control and / 
or the inconsistent application of controls.  
Opportunities exist to mitigate further against 
potential risks. 
 

 

Predominantly LOW and 

MEDIUM 
recommendations or high 

number of LOW 
recommendations. 

 

LIMITED 

assurance 

 
There are weaknesses in the design of controls 
and / or consistency of application, which can put 
the system objectives at risk.  Therefore, there is 
a need to introduce additional controls and 
improve compliance with existing ones to reduce 
the risk exposure for the Authority. 
 

 

Predominantly MEDIUM 

and HIGH 
recommendations or high 

number of MEDIUM 
recommendations. 

 

NO 

assurance 

 
Controls are weak and/or there is consistent non-
compliance, which can result in the failure of the 
system.  Failure to improve controls will expose 
the Authority to significant risk, which could lead 
to major financial loss, embarrassment or failure 
to achieve key service objectives. 
 

 

One (or more) CRITICAL 
or a significant number of 

HIGH recommendations. 

 

108



Appendix E 
Audit Plan 2008/09 Revisions 

 
 

Reason for Removal / Deferral /  Realignment Days Removed AUDIT ACTIVITY 
Removed / rolled forward to 2009 /2010   TOTAL 85 

 
 

STRATEGIC RESOURCES 

Business Change Programme 
 

PwC are due to follow-up programme 
realisation. Internal Audit activities to roll 
forward into 2009 / 2010 as appropriate.  
 

15  

Budgetary Control (Capital)  
 
 

Aspects of Capital Budgetary Control are being 
reviewed within an unplanned contract review.  
To be re-programmed into 2009/ 2010 
 

10  

EDRMS 
 

Corporate project has been delayed and Audit 
Activities will roll forward into 2009 / 2010 
 

10  

Capital Receipts 
 

This is incorporated into the medium term 
strategy due to credit crunch issues. Audit 
activity to roll forward into 2009/10. 
 

15  

Business Transformation – Performance 
Improvement 

 

Audit focus changed to review key high risk 
performance indicators on behalf of the 
Performance Team. 
 
 

15  

SUB-TOTAL 65 

 
 

IT AUDIT 

Coverage to be determined following the 
outcome of the AT Kearney report 
.  

The Chief Internal Auditor is undertaking 
activities regarding Corporate IT projects for 
Government Connect and E-CAF, and IT 
Governance. 
 
Internal Audit are also maintaining an 
overview on the arrangements being 
developed for the ICT Managed Service 
(AT Kearney review).  
 
Original plan days reduced. 
 

20  

SUB-TOTAL 20 

 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL  
 
A separate exercise has been incorporated into the audit of the Treasury Management function to include a 
review of the arrangements in relation to investments made in Icelandic banks.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank



Development of Future Audit Plans  APPENDIX F 

AUDIT GROUP REASONS POTENTIAL AUDIT AREAS 

Systems Activity 
 
(S.151 Officer 
Responsibilities) 

Review the design / operation 
of key systems so that s151 
officer can make his statement 
included in the Annual 
Accounts, on the reliability of 
the supporting financial 
systems. 
 
The fundamental systems 
(critical to the operation of the 
council) are reviewed annually; 
others reviewed dependent on 
risk. 
 

• Main Financial Systems 

• Payroll 

• Accounts Payable (including Ordering / 
Receiving / Payments and Purchasing Cards) 

• Billing, Debtors and Debt Recovery 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefits 

• Council Tax and Business Rates 

• Cash / Banking 

• Budgetary Control (Revenue and Capital) 

• IT Control Environment 

• Treasury Management 

• Asset Management and Registers 

• Fixed Asset Accounting 
 

Strategic Risks Audit testing of the 
effectiveness of controls 
designed to mitigate identified 
risks.  
 

• Key strategic risks not identified separately in 
other work strings. For example this could be 
around Economic Well Being, the Growth 
Agenda or ALMO's) 

 

Annual 
Governance 
Statement 

Each year the Council is 
obliged to issue a statement on 
the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements. In 
particular it is expected to 
assess its arrangements 
against the six principles of 
good governance as 
recommended by CIPFA / 
SOLACE. 
 

• AGS (implementation of previous; and 
arrangements for production of) 

• Review of the Effectiveness of IA 

• Corporate Governance 

• Partnerships and Governance 

• Ethical Standards 

• Fraud Awareness / Anti Fraud Culture 

• Performance Management and Data Quality 

• Key elements from the CAA (for example Risk 
Management, Business Continuity, Workforce 
Planning, Equalities) 

• Assurance Framework 
 

Directorate 
Review 

Reviews covering each 
delivery contract. Based on the 
controls in place to mitigate 
key risks rather than an 
assessment of the contract. 
 

• Risk based reviews. For example, Public 
Protection, Legal Services, Highways 
Transport, Children and Young Peoples Plan 

 

Schools Cyclical schools audits to 
ensure they are following 
correct financial procedures 
and council policies 
 

• Financial Management Standards in Schools 

Contract Audit / 
Project 
Management 

Dependent on risk, sample 
review of projects to ensure 
governance arrangements 
followed and contracts provide 
vfm 
 

• Use of Councils Project Register and Contracts 
Database to establish areas of activity 

Grant Certification Provision of certification on 
grant claims to government 
departments. 
 

• Departments should coordinate spend etc 
through project/grant life and provide 
appropriate evidence for IA to verify and 
approve claims. For example, LPSA. 

 

Corporate Support Ad hoc duties outside the audit 
areas 

• Time set aside to cover new developments, 
advice and consultancy, support to the CAA 
and UoR process, Audit Committee support, 
and liaison with External Audit 

 

 

111



112

This page is intentionally left blank



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
  

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

 

Contact Officer(s): John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance 

Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 

( 384 564 

( 384 557 

 

 
 

FEEDBACK AND UPDATE REPORT 
 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

 This is a standard report to Audit Committee which forms part of its agreed work 
programme. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

This standard report provides feedback on items considered or questions asked at 
previous meetings of the Committee. It also provides an update on any specific matters 
which are of interest to the Committee or where Committee have asked to be kept informed 
of progress. 

 
 
3. FEEDBACK RESPONSES 
 

 Appendix A sets out the outstanding feedback items. Following approval by Committee 
the identified actions will be transferred to the record of Actions completed for the municipal 
year. 

 
  

113



APPENDIX A 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: RECORD OF ACTION TAKEN (FEEDBACK REPORT) 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2008 - APRIL 2009 
 
DATE ISSUE 
RAISED 

SUBJECT / ITEM AUDIT COMMITTEE COMMENTS OFFICER 
RESPONSIBLE 

ACTION TAKEN SIGN OFF DATE 

Audit Committee 
Handbook 

Include Audit Committee Handbook 
in committee papers, and provide 
supporting report 
 

Steve Crabtree On agenda 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 

Annual Governance 
Statement 2007 / 2008 

Clarification required on the "test 
case" disrupts policy comment in 
relation to smoking. 

Steve Crabtree As part of the supporting documentation to produce 
the Annual Governance Statement, committee 
received the Assurance Framework (Appendix B on 
that report) which mapped out the key risks within 
the organisation and how these were being 
addressed / mitigated. 
 
One priority within the council, as part of the 
“achieve the best possible health and well being”, is 

to increase the access to smoking cessation 
services and a risk identified to deliver this was 
"legal test case disrupts policy". This related to a 
legal challenge to the government's smoking ban in 
England which was launched in the High Court in 
June 2007. Freedom to Choose lodged a petition for 
a judicial review of the legislation at the Royal 
Courts of Justice citing Article One of the First 
Protocol of the European Convention on Human 
Rights which assures the right to peaceful 
enjoyment of possessions. It also points to Article 
Eight which covers the right to respect privacy. If the 
challenge was successful, it could have a material 
impact on our policy statement. 
 

30 June 2008 

Update and Feedback 
report 

Send Cllr Miners a copy of the 
feedback report 
 

Steve Crabtree Report was emailed to Cllr Miners on 3 June, and 
acknowledgement received back same day. 

30 June 2008 

2 June 2008 
 

Annual Committee Work 
Programme 
 

John Blair to organise training 
session for new Councillors.  

John Blair Will be prior to next meeting on 30 June 2008 
(18.30 start) for all Members. A separate session 
has been organised with new Members for 25 June 
2008. 
 

30 June 2008 

1
1
4



APPENDIX A 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: RECORD OF ACTION TAKEN (FEEDBACK REPORT: continued) 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2008 - APRIL 2009 
 
DATE ISSUE 
RAISED 

SUBJECT / ITEM AUDIT COMMITTEE COMMENTS OFFICER 
RESPONSIBLE 

ACTION TAKEN SIGN OFF DATE 

30 June 2008 - No items referred for consideration 
/ explanation 
 

- - Not applicable 

1 Sept 2008 - No items referred for consideration 
/ explanation 
 

- - Not applicable 

External Audit Report To 
Those Charged With 
Governance 2007/2008 
ISA260 
 

To provide some more information 
regarding the number of over 
depreciated assets. 

Mandy Bretherton 
 
John Blair 

External Audit have made reference to depreciated 
assets within their Management Letter report which 
is submitted to Audit Committee on 9 February 
2009. 

 23 Sept 2008 

Statement Of Accounts And 
Summary Accounts 
2007/2008 
 

To provide examples of trade debt 
over a year old 

John Blair Debt management and processes are incorporated 
into the training schedule on 9 February 2009. 

 

Risk Management Update Strategic Risk Register to be added 
as a future agenda item  
 

Mandy Bretherton Has been factored into the agenda for 9 February 
2009 

 3 Nov 2008 

Audit Committee Work 
Programme 2008/09 
Including Any Training 
Needs 
 

Organise a training session for the 
Committee involving Debt 
Management and Write Offs 

John Blair Debt management and processes are incorporated 
into the training schedule on 9 February 2009. 

 

 

1
1
5



116

This page is intentionally left blank



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

9 FEBRUARY 2009 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
  

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Hiller, Chair of Audit Committee 

 

Contact Officer(s): John Blair, Head of Strategic Finance 

Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 

( 384 564 

( 384 557 

 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

 This is a standard report to Audit Committee which forms part of its agreed work 
programme. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

This standard report provides details of the remaining Work Programme for the municipal 
year 2008 / 2009. 

 
 
3. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 Appendix A sets out the remaining items scheduled for future meetings of the Audit 
Committee. 
 
In addition, Appendix B provides a framework for the structure of the committee meetings 
for the Municipal Year 2009 / 2010. At the present moment, dates are purely indicative. 
 
Based on the future work programme, appropriate training needs can be developed. 

 
  

117



APPENDIX A 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: WORK PROGRAMME 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2008 - APRIL 2009 
 
 
DATE 

 

REPORT / ACTIVITY AREA LEAD OFFICER SUMMARY EXPLANATION   

Assurance Framework 
 

Steve Crabtree Receive the annual assurance framework   

Internal Audit Plan 2009 / 2010 
 

Steve Crabtree Receive the annual plans and strategy for 
Internal Audit 
 

  

External Audit: Draft Audit and Inspection Plan (*) 
 

John Blair Receive the draft inspection and audit plans 
for External Audit 
 

  

External Audit: Joint Audit and Inspection Letter (*) 
 

John Blair Receive the annual inspection letter   

Comprehensive Area Assessment Update John Blair Update on the arrangements for the CAA 
 

  

External Audit Reports John Harrison To receive a series of commissioned reviews 
undertaken by the External Auditors 
 

  

Update and Feedback Report  Receive standard feedback report on issues 
and action requests made at past meetings 
of the committee 
 

  

30 Mar 2009 

Audit Committee Work Programme including any Training 
Needs 
 

 To agree the current work programme and 
review any training needs 

  

 

 
(*) Subject to agreement / release by Audit Commission in time for meeting 

 
 

1
1
8



APPENDIX B 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2009 - APRIL 2010 
 

 
June 
2009 

June 
2009 

Sept 
2009 

Sept 
2009 

Nov 
2009 

Feb 
2010 

Mar 
2010 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

Member Training X X X X X X X 

Update and Feedback Report X X X X X X X 

Audit Committee Work Programme X X X X X X X 

INTERNAL AUDIT / EXTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Internal Audit - Annual Report 2008 / 2009 X       

Internal Audit - Progress Report: Quarterly (subject to dates)   X  X X X 

Internal Audit - Strategy and Plan 2010 / 2011       X 

External Audit - Reports (subject to availability)  X  X  X X X 

External Audit - Joint Audit and Inspection Plan       X 

Annual Audit Committee Report X       

1
1
9



APPENDIX B 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2009 - APRIL 2010 
 

 
June 
2009 

June 
2009 

Sept 
2009 

Sept 
2009 

Nov 
2009 

Feb 
2010 

Mar 
2010 

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

Draft / Final Annual Governance Statement X X      

Fraud and Irregularity Annual Report 2008 / 2009 X       

Risk Management   X   X  

Use of Resources X    X  X 

Comprehensive Area Assessment X    X  X 

Assurance Framework     X   

ACCOUNTS 

Statement of Accounts and Summary Accounts 2008 / 2009  X      

Audit of Statement of Accounts    X    

International Financial Reporting Standards X X      

 
 

1
2
0


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 3 November 2008
	4 External Audit Reports
	090209 - Audit Committee  - External Audit Reports - Appendix A
	090209 - Audit Committee - External Audit Reports - Appendix B1
	090209 - Audit Committee - External Audit Reports - Appendix C1

	5 International Financial Reporting Standards
	6 Risk Management Update
	7 Annual Governance Statement Update
	090209 - Audit Committee - Annual Governance Statement Update Report - Appendix A

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report - To 31 December 2008
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix A
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix B
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix C
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix D
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix E
	090209 - Audit Committee - Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix F

	9 Feedback and Update Report
	10 Audit Committee Work Programme 2008/2009 Including any Training Needs

